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Narrative Report
1.0 Introduction
1.1 This narrative report aims to provide information on the most significant matters reported

1.2

1.3

1.4

1.5

2.0
2.1

within the Group accounts for the services provided by the Police and Crime
Commissioner (Commissioner) and Chief Constable of Dyfed-Powys along with
providing wider organisational context.

The Police Reform and Social Responsibility Act 2011 created two corporations sole
within each police force area, the Commissioner and Chief Constable. Each individual
has clear and separate statutory remit. The Commissioner is publicly elected and
therefore, represents the public's voice on policing matters, Mr Dafydd Llywelyn was
elected as Commissioner in May 2016. Mr Mark Collins was appointed by the
Commissioner to the position of Chief Constable in December 2016.

This report details the main objective, strategies and principle risks that the
Commissloner and Chief Constable of Dyfed Powys face. It provides a commentary on
how resources have been used to achieve desired outcomes In line with these objectives
and strategies.

It aims to give a fair, balanced and understandable analysis of financlal and operational
performance, which can be used to provide context to the financial Information included
with the financlal statements to aid the understanding of the reader.

The narrative report will focus on the following areas:

Organisational Overview and External Environment
Governance and Operational Performance

Organisational Model

Financlal Performance

Risks, opportunities and the Medium Term Financial Outlook
Basis of preparation and presentation

Organisational Overview and External Environment

Spanning 4,188 square miles, Dyfed-Powys is the largest force area in England and
Wales. With 13,842 miles of roads, 2 large ports, 350 miles of coastiine and vast areas
of countryside, the geography presents significant demand and resourcing challenges.
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The resident population of 515,870 is spread across extensive rural areas, holiday and
market towns as well as more heavily populated areas. The draw of tourism presents
unique seasonable demands with large numbers of tourists visiting key towns which
impact levels of crime, anti-social behaviour as well as deaths and serlous injurles on our
roads,

The Welsh language Is spoken by 47.2% of Dyfed-Powys residents compared with the
national average of 29.9%. As a service we are committed to ensuring that the workforce
is representative of the communities it serves so that members of the public are,
whenever possible, afforded the opportunity to communicate with us via the medium of
Walsh.

Police Officer headcount has remained falrly stable over the last 5 years however
2018/19 saw a planned reduction in establishment to 1120 officers (excluding seconded
officers and other externally funded posts). The Medium Term Financial Plan (MTFP)
included provision for a Voluntary Early Severance scheme for Police Officers which
would contribute £1.2m of cost reductions. Rigorous scrutiny and consultation
surrounded the implementation of thls new policy aimed to assist the efficient running of
the Force, allow for succession planning and ensure an optimal and effective skills mix.
Police support staff posts have, however risen to 675. The workforce also includes 148
PCSOs and 98 speclal constables.

The financial landscape Is challenging and Dyfed-Powys Police has seen central grant
funding reductions of 22% or £14.16 million between the 2010 Comprehensive Spending
Review and 2018/19. The Force has been required to make savings of £24.7million over
this period and has an extensive efficiency and savings plan going forward.

There has been much independent commentary over the last year in relation to Police
sustainability, funding, resllience and increased burdens which Include Increases to
employer's pension contributions which all highlight and confirm the very critical and
precarious position that Dyfed-Powys and the police service in general face. Both the
Commissioner and Chief Constable have continued to articulate concerns and In relation
to the very significant impacts and risks that threaten the communities of Dyfed-Powys
and these are further detailed In the

hitp://\www.dyfedpo

v1601-final.pdf

Against this challenging financial backdrop, demands continue to grow and become
increasingly complex. The Force has experienced increases In recorded crime albelt that
changes to way in which crimes are recorded has significantly influenced this. All forces
in England and Wales have experienced similar increases with the most notable
increases in relation to violent crime.

Police officers and staff are called upon to deal with a wide variety of important issues
affecting the public.
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Antisoclal Behaviour Fraud Property crime
ccrv Justice Roads policing
Children and young people Mental health Sexual crime
Crime investigation Modern Day Slavery  Specialist capabilities
Cyber crime Neighbourhood policing Stop and search
Digital technology Organised Crime Terrorism
Domestic abuse Police Effectiveness Violent crime
Drugs and aicohol Police legitimacy Workforce
Firearms 999 Response Youth and Policing |

The service is evolving quickly to enable its response to new risks, threats and changes
in technology many of which require new ways of working.

The Force has developed both a delivery plan for 2017-21 and Vision for 2025 with both
of these high level documents being underpinned by detailed plans. The plans recognise
the challenging operational and financlal environment, the need for continued investment
to support sustainable services and the requirement to match force resources and
assets to meet force demand appropriately.

With the Commissioner's support, the force has invested significantly In digital policing,
providing front line officers and PCSOs with access to force systems through mobile
data terminals and body wom video cameras, as well as Introducing vehicle based
telematics to enhance Incident response. CCTV has continued to be rolled out widely
across the area, acting both as a deterrent but also providing a valuable and effective
crime investigation tool.

Policing is a non-devoived service In terms of the Welsh Government, however much of
the work that is undertaken across the four county areas is rightly done in partnership
with Local Authorities, Fire Authorities, Local Health Boards and many other partners
including the third sector. In addition a number of important services such as Armed
Response and responding to the threat of Organised Crime and Terrorism are carried
out in collaboration with other Forces.

Dyfed-Powys Police contributes to national policing activities and the Force's officers
and staff have asslsted with a number of high profile policing events and incidents during
the year which were reimbursed including;

Salisbury poisonings - Wiltshire Police

US Presidentlal Visit

Commonwealth Heads of Government Meeting
Western Balkans Summit (London)

The Royal Wedding 12th October 2018
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More locally, the Force had a number of significant planned and unplanned operations
and events during the year including:

* “Operation Regent’ which resulted In a total of 19 people being charged with
conspiracy to supply class A drugs in the North Powys area;

e The fatal blaze at the Ty Belgrave House In Aberystwyth. Nine adults and
three children were rescued from the hotel after the fire broke out on July 25
last year;

¢ The tragic murders In the Knighton area In April 2018 and in the Pendine
area on the 28™ of September;

e A number of other tragic incldents which brought significant operational
challenges and extraordinary resourcing requirements.

¢ Numerous local events and activities including the Royal Welsh Show and
the Hay Book Festival

Governance and Operational Performance

The Governance arrangements by which the Commissioner and Chlef Constable
operate are complex and have been critically reviewed during 2018/19. An Annual
Governance Statement is included as part of this Statement of Accounts and this detalls
the arrangements In place for delivering robust scrutiny and accountabllity by the
Commissioner and Chief Constable.

The Commissloner and Chief Constable each have a clear and separate statutory remit.
The operational independence of the Chief Constable is protected in legislation. He has
a statutory responsibility for the control, direction and delivery of operational policing
services provided by the Force. The Chief Constable is accountable In law for the
exercise of police powers and to the Commissioner for the delivery of efficient and
effective policing, management of resources and force expenditure. The Chief
Constable holds Office under the Crown and is responsible for maintaining the Queen’s
Peace.

The Police and Crime Commissioner is statutorily responsible for securing an efficient
and effective police force and holding the Chief Constable to account for the exercise of
his functions. The Commissioner is responsible for setting the annual police budget
(including precept level} and ensuring that public money Is accounted for and that it Is
used economically, efficiently and effectively.

The Commissioner is responsible for setting the strategic priorities for the Force through
the production of the Police and Crime Plan, ensuring business is conducted In
accordance with the law and that proper standards are achieved and maintained.

The Commissioner's Police and Crime Plan is an important document that sets out four
prioritles and five key delivery principles namely:

Priorities Delivery Principles
Keeping Communities Safe Delivering Value for Money
Safeguarding the Vulnerable Public Engagement
Protecting our communities from | Working Together
_serlous threats ]
Connecting with communities _Supporting Victims
Equality and Fairness
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The Commissioner and Chief Constable have continued to consolidate a solid and
professional relationship between the two functions but have a single vislon of
improving Dyfed-Powys Police and the service it provides to the public.

The Commissioner funded a range of services during 2018/19 to underpin the priorities
outlined in his Police and Crime Plan:

L 2

The Commissioner brought together existing services for victims of crime and
antisoclal behaviour to ensure a seamless delivery to victims regardless of their
experience. It is acknowledged that the line between antisocial behaviour and
crime is often blurred and that a victim’s particular experience may include both
at varying times. Existing antisocial behaviour support workers were transferred
into Goleudy who now house a team of victim care officers and complex case
workers who will support victims throughout their journey.

The Commissioner was instrumental In developing a joint commissioning
arrangement with the four Local Authorities within Dyfed-Powys. This resulted in
the award of a new contract for provision of independent advisory services for
victims of domestic abuse assessed as high risk, bringing together 5 separate
arrangements across the area. The service provided by Hafan Cymru will ensure
an equitable offer of service to victims across Dyfed-Powys and provides a
single point of contact for commissloners to influence service dellvery. In
addition to this, the Commissioner secured arrangements for Goleudy to provide
support to domestic abuse victims with a standard or medium risk assessment.
This ensured that all victims of domestic abuse are offered appropriate support
services.

The Commissioner continued to work with partner agencies to improve the
response to support victims of sexual abuse. New Pathways continued to
provide a crisis support service which works closely with the police to provide
forensic medical examinations and supports victims and witnesses through the
complexity of the criminal Justice process. The service received 335 referrals
during the year, 92% of clients in 2018/19 reported feeling less depressed after
recelving treatment, with 83% fesling that they were better able to cope.

The Commissioner is an integral partner within Area Planning Boards (APBs),
who are responsible for providing accountabllity, governance and scrutiny of
substance misuse strategic planning, performance and flnancial management.
APBs are established on a Heaith Board footprint, with membership consisting
of the responsible authorities under the Crime and Disorder Act 1998. The PCC
jointly commisslons services to provide substance misuse treatment in both
Hywel Dda and Powys regions. Facilities within custody to identify offenders with
substance misuse Issues and provide a pathway Into appropriate services are
also funded by the Commissioner. In 2018/19 a custody triage scheme was
piloted in Pembrokeshire expanding on the previous Women's Pathfinder and
seeking to Identify and tackle the root cause of offending. Based on an
evaluation of the outcomes achieved, the Intention is that a diversionary scheme
is rolled out across Dyfed-Powys at a future.

The Wales Community Rehabilitation Company continued to provide a victim-led
restorative ustice service and worked closely with Goleudy to ensure that all
victims are aware of their options to access restorative practice. A Restorative
Justice intervention is a process where the victim and the offender collectively
resolve how to deal with the aftermath of an offence.

The Commissloner continued to commission services through Liamau providing
an independent debriefing and mediation service for children and young people
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who have been reported as missing and are at risk of sexual exploitation. In
2018/19, Llamau undertook 329 debrief sessions with young people and their
families and provided mediation to 8 families throughout the year.

The Chief Constable is responsible for supporting the Commissioner in the delivery of
the priorities set out in the Police and Crime Plan. His operational delivery, performance
monttoring frameworks and financing decisions focus on these priorities. Progress
against the plan is reported quarterly at the Policing Accountablliity Board; a public
meeting where the Police and Crime Commissloner holds the Chief Constable and his
senior team to account. The latest Performance Report can be obtained within the
agenda for the last meeting at:

hitp:/fiwww.dvfed .

There are a number of volume and output metrics that are monitored as part of the
assurance and govemance arrangements. This analysis provides indicators of progress
and performance against the priorities within the Police & Crime Plan. All performance
is monitored and scrutinised through the appropriate Boards within the Govemnance
structure with a key focus on improvement.

Initial handling of calls for service at our Force Communications Centre Is timely and
efficient. Dyfed-Powys Police have continued to answer 999 calls well within the 10
seconds National Call Handling Standard. Equally, more than 90% of non-emergency
number 101 calls are answered in less than 45 seconds. The number of calls for service
recelved at our FCC has remained largely unchanged for the last 4 years and demand is
not forecast to change significantly in the coming years.

Response times to calls for service, in accordance with the prioritisation given to them, is
very good. Some geographical challenges are faced in places such as Lampeter and
Radnorshire Inspector areas however, in comparison, the response times are far better
than in other forces.

The Chart demonstrates that total crime recorded has been increasing since February
2018 however would appear to have stabilised since September 2018.

Figure 1: Total recorded crime volume over time
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Within the last two years, the largest Increases in recorded crime are within Violent
Crime, Public Order Offences, Sexual Offences and Cyber-Related Offences.
Increases are also noted within Possession of a Weapon and Robbery offences albeit,
these are small in number but given the serious nature of the crimes and indeed the
national focus on knife crime, it is important that the force continue to record and deal
effectively with such reports.

Figure 2: Crime Category comparison 2017/18 to 2018/19

Crime Proportion & Yolume 12-months snding March-19 Vs, 12-months ending March-18

Violence Against the Person
Theft

11,774 23%

Arson & Criminal Damage
Drug Offences

Public Order Offences
Sexual Offences

42%

11%
Burglary - Residential
Vehicle Offences
2%

Possession of Weapons 53%

80,336 26,769

Mobile phones, computers and tablets that provide access to the Internet and Soclal
Media has facilitated a stark change in the way some crime is committed such as
stalking and harassment, sexual offences and fraud. As storage capaclty increases on
our digital devices, so does the resource and expertise needed to retrieve the data. In
the last year, Dyfed-Powys Police’s Cyber Crime Unit examined 63.4 terabytes of data
compared with 2017 when 19.1 terabytes was examined, but the number of Digital
Investigators has not Increased. The force has reviewed how it deals with digital
investigations and is due to implement a structure that will ensure a fast and efficient
sarvice.

County Lines is a term used for Organised Crime Groups that carry out drug dealing In
more rural settings but run from larger population centres. Nationally, there has been a
widely reported rise in County Lines offences. Dyfed-Powys Police has a relatively
small number of Organised Crime Groups operating in the area. A number of police
operations have been run to ensure that we effectively disrupt and dismantle County
Lines activity thereby minimising impact on our communities whilst also protecting the
vulnerable who are targeted by these groups.

Doing the basics brililantly Is a key commitment of the Chief Constable and this applies
across all areas of work. For 2019, Neighbourhood policing and Domestic Abuse have
been established as priority areas that the Chief Officer team and other senior leaders
are focusing on to drive improvement In further safeguarding our communities.

10
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In terms of domestic abuse, the force has introduced a vulnerability desk as part of a
wider programme of work to deal more effectively with all such reports, to ensure the
best possible service is provided to victims. A team of officers quality assure each call
received where a domestic incident is reported to ensure the officers attending are fully
equipped with all information necessary as well as ensuring that the needs of victims
are met.

Quality and timeliness of investigations for Rape and Serious Sexual offences is of
utmost importance for Dyfed-Powys Police. Action plans are in place to enable Senior
Officers to scrutinise investigations and put in place robust accountability. Progress
against these is reported through the force's governance structure.

The length of time take to deal with and close a crime' has reduced by 16 days over the
last year® as a result of continued efforts to ensure reports are dealt with in a timely
fashlon and that the allocation of police to calls for service Is appropriate at all times.

Court conviction rates at Magistrates Court are consistently better in Dyfed-Powys
Police than in other forces. Generally, conviction rates at Crown Court are also better
than other forces however, the numbers are lower and more sensitive to fluctuation.

Publlc opinion of local policing is gauged from two key sources of information. These
are the Crime Survey for England and Wales (CSEW) which offers public perception of
policing and the Victim Satisfaction Survey which provides victim experience of policing.

The CSEW is carried out by the Office for National Statistics and the Victim Satisfaction

Survey Is carried out by police staff within DPP, a service commissioned by our Police

and Crime Commissioner. Generally the Victim Satisfaction Survey suggests that

victims are satisfied with the whole experience however, keeping victims informed of
progress made against the Investigation of the crime is an area that Is consistently
highlighted as one for improvement.

a. Crime Ouicomes

Considering crimes that were reported and assigned an outcome (finalised) in 2018/19,
63% (17,835 crimes) were assigned an outcome within 30 days of it being
reported. This Is an increase of 4% when compared with 2017/18. The volume of
crimes assigned an outcome within 30 days depends highly on both the type, and
nature of the crime. Crimes of greater complexity, such as sexual and robbery offences
(33% and 47%, respectively) are likely to take longer to assign an outcoms, than crimes
that are generally considered less complex, such as criminal damage and public order
offences (71% and 67%, respectively).

b. Victim satisfaction
798 telephone interviews were conducted in 2018/19 to identify how satisfied victims of

crime and anti-soclal behaviour were with policing services received. The graph below
focuses on five aspects of our victims' journey.

! through application of an “Outcome”
2 In financlal year 2017/2018, It took an average of 53 days to apply an Outcome to a crime. In 20182019, i took 37
days to apply an Cutcome to & crime.

11
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Victim satisfactlon rate - 12 months ending Mar 2019
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Lower satisfaction rates with being kept informed appear to influence an individual's
whole experience satisfaction rate. Consideration Is being given to implementing
measures to address this feedback, thereby improving victim experience.

Despite a number of changes within the Police Chlef Officer Group, the Commissioner
and Chief Constable continue to work hard together to overcoms continued challenges
with progress being made In a number of critical areas. A focus on public engagement
and working together to safeguard the vulnerable has resulted in a shift In focus, to what
has now been recognised nationally as exceptional victim care.

The level of public perception remains high in comparison with levels elsewhere in the
country with 65.6% rating the work that Dyfed-Powys Police do as good or excellent
(December 2018 Data):

Graph 2 : Level of Public Perception - Good or Excelient
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In terms of Victims Satisfaction 77% were satlsfied with their whole experience but the
Force recognises that there is work to do to focus on keeping victims up to date.

During October 2018 Her Majesty’s Inspectorate of Constabulary and Fire and Rescue

Services HMICFRS undertook the first annual integrated PEEL inspection of the force.
Their findings were published in late April 2019 with the following gradings:

12
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Effectiveness | How effectively does the force reduce crime and | Good
keep people safe?
Efficlency How efficlently does the force operate and how | Requires
{ sustainable are its services to the public? Improvement.
Legitimacy How legitimately does the force treat the public | Requires
and its workforce? |_Improvement.

Whilst it was disappointing to see the gradings, both the Commissioner and Chief
Constable are absolutely committed to providing a first class policing service to the
communitles of Dyfed Powys. The Force has Invested a significant amount of time in
better understanding the Issues highlighted and continues to focus on addressing these.

HMICFRS recognised the significant progress the Force is making in relation to
restructuring services to deliver specialist support to communities and it is also
reassuring to hear praise for the work of staff in the Force Contact Centre, who
consistently identify vulnerability. The Force was graded as good for treating the public
fairly which Is testament to the work undertaken dally to support and safeguard the
communities of Dyfed Powys.

Both the Commissioner and Chief Officer Group are very clear that they want a culture
where everyone feels abie to be heard and to challenge but I is evident that there is
work to do in relation to concemns about percelved fairness. The Force undertook a staff
survey during 2018/19 with a high response rate of 62.2% which provided very positive
results as well as Identifying a number of areas for attention.

The Force has continued to re-shape to meet demand and has made considerable
progress in many of the delivery principles which underpin the Police and Crime Plan.
The Force has the lowest level of recorded crime and is therefore the safest place to
live In England and Wales with public trust and confidence remaining high. It is
however, recognised that the landscape of policing is forever changing, and that there is
still much work ahead to address future challenges whilst addressing the issues
identifiled within the most recent HMICFRS Report.

The Organisational Model

The Force Is organised on both a geographic and functional basis. The Chief Constable
is supported by a Chief Officer Team which comprises the Deputy Chief Constable, the
Assistant Chief Constable and the Director of Finance. The main responsibilities of the
three positions supporting the Chief Constable are shown in the table below:

Deputy Chief Constable | Assistant Chlef Constable Director of Finance |

People’s Services Local Policing Corporate Finance

Legal Department Investigations Fleet =
| Information Management Specialist Response Procurement

Collaboration and Efficiency | Contact Centre Information Systems and

Technology

Corporate Communications | Scientific Support Business Support Unit

Il Health Retirements Criminal Justice

Major Operations Partnerships

Health and Safety =
Professional Standards . —

The Force had a budgeted establishment of 1,191 police officers 148 Police Community
Support Officers and 675 police staff. A breakdown of the distribution of staffing is

shown in the table below:

13



POLICE & CRIME COMBMISSIONER FOR DYFED POWYS

4.3

4.4

5.0
5.1

5.2

5.3

5.4

5.5

Breakdown of Budgeted Posltlons 2018-19

Police ' Police

Officers| PCSOs Staff

FTE FTE FTE

Local Policing 596 148 9
investigations 320 0 162
Operational Support( Including Call Handling) 174 0 158
Criminal Justice 2 0 45
Scientific Support 0 0 21
Professional Standards 9 0 14
Other headings Inclusing Business Support 26 0 244
Seconded and Funded Areas 64 0 22
1,191 148 675

Recruitment intakes have been carefully planned and managed during the year to
ensure optimal resourcing levels, availabiltty of specialist skilis and to allow the
proportionate geographical distribution of staff. The budget for the year included
provision for a Voluntary Early Severance scheme which resulted in 17.4 FTE leaving
the organisation during the year. New training arangements have been implemented
from March 2019 under the Police Education Qualifications Framework which will see
two Intakes of student constables each year with external course providers delivering
core elements of their training.

The Commissioner has an Office which supports him to deliver his statutory
responsibliities as set out in The Policing Protocol Order 2011. In addition to the
statutory roles of Monitoring Officer and Chief Finance Officer, the Commissioner has a
team of professionals to advise on matters relating to estates, finance, policy,
performance, engagement and partnerships. The Commissioner has a total of 41.4FTE,
which includes 22 within the Estates function which transferred to the Commissioner
during 2017.

Financlal Performance

The Group Statement of Accounts shows the financlal performance of the Group and
has been prepared on the basis of proper accounting practice which meets the
requirements of the Chartered institute of Public Finance & Accountancy’s Code of
Practice. This differs slightly from the budgets that are managed and monitored on a
day to day basie as these exclude some elements such as depreciation and movements
on pension liabilities which under statute do not need to be financed fully in the year.

The cost of services within the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement
shows that £136.1 million has been spent on providing policing services to the public of
Dyfed Powys Police in 2018/19. This is around £3.6 million less than the comparable
figure spent In the prior financlal year. Of this reduction - some £4.9 million is
attributable to changes in curment service penslon costs.

The Statement provides an analysis across the main service components and reflects
organisational structural change with the prior year being restated for comparative
purposes. For example, it can be seen that the largest element was spent on Local
Policing which accounted for £72.7 million of the total in 2018/19.

The Balance Sheet provides a snap shot of the Commissioner's assets and liabilities as
at 31* March 2019.

The Group Balance Sheet Is dominated by the long term liability of £1,292 million (was
£1,183 million) that exists In respect of future pension liabilities for police officers and
staff. This represents the amount that would need to set aside at the balance sheet date
to cover future payments of pensions of all current serving and retired officers and staff.
This figure has been calculated independently on an actuarial basls and takes account

14
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of future salary levels, inflation, mortalify rates etc. This has increased by £109 million
during the year predominantly due to changes In financlal and demographic
assumptions. All current and future police (but not staff) pension costs will be paid for by
the Government.

The next largest item on the Balance Sheet is the £73.73 million of property, plant &
equipment owned by the Commissioner. In addition to these long term assets, the
Commissioner held £17.7 million of short term assets, predominately short term
investments. Detalls of the Balance Sheet items are shown In the notes to the accounts.

Financlal Performan nd Variance Analysis 2018/19

A total net budget of £88.100 million was originally set by Commissioner for the year
2018/19 which Incorporated a Council Tax Increase of 5% at Band D and which relied
upon the use of £2.279 million from reserves to support current spending. Of the total
budget £85.651 million was set as the budget for the Chief Constable.

This incorporated a 2.29% pay award assumption and an assumed 2.5% Increase in
general inflation on non-pay costs. This assumption proved to be challenging with
certain areas of pressures in relation to utilities, Instability within the forensics market,
impacts of uncertainty in relation to Brexit and the retall price index being over 3%.

Within this baseline spending level, cost reductions of £1.925 million were already
identifled from across a number of initiatives Including workforce structures,
collaborative arrangements, ICT developments, Income generation and significant
reductions In non- pay spending delivered ‘through procurement and other cost
reduction initiatives.

Having recognised the critical nature of the financial situation the Chief Constable
established a Finance Gold group during 2018/19. This Gold group Is chaired by the
Chief Constable himself and is attended by all senior managers to ensure that there is a
very clear and consistent message and understanding of financlal issues across all
aspects of the business.

Four specific sub groups have been established with focused representation:

] medium term financlal pian to consider use of reserves, efficiencies, future
funding and resourcing levels
overtlme to critically review arrangements and requirements

° procurement to critically review arrangements and spend for contracts and
supplies & services
. Income generation to seek and maximise opportunities.

The following table sets out the final out-tumn position for 2018/19 and compares this to
the original budget. A revised budget is also shown In this variation statement that
reflects additional budgets and movements approved during the year. Virements are
processed during the year to ensure that the budget is updated on a timely basis. The
changes fo the budget referred to below were updated and reported at the monthly
Policing Board meetings held thorough the year.
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Variance
Variation Statement gﬂgg‘:tl l;:‘g;:f Actual (Pof:l:lve
Saving)
Budget Holder £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
Police and Crime Commissioner
Office and Commissioning Costs 1,992 1,965 1,772 193
Estates Costs 3,736 3,736 3,434 302
;:‘:;ffé“o:‘t':"m" SERIUS 5728| 5701 5,206 495
Chlef Constable
udgets Managed Centrall
Chief Constable's Office 1,118 1,118 1,334 -216
Corporate Budgets and Income -2,043 -1,611 -2,117 506
E:toc;rinsagrv II:Lel:ded National / Regional / 1,447 1,447 1,706 259
Staff Associations 205 205 245 =40
Deputy Chief Constable
People's Services 2,634 2,773 2,622 151
I;:gzasl.afg;;onnatlon, Efficiency, Health 2,708 2,603 3.102 409
oo Cormanatige o *| | 11|  ees| 2
Professional Standards 1,103 1,130 1,000 40
Assistant Chief Constable
Local Policing 55,965 55,639 56,559 80
Investigations 20,251 20,081 20,113 -32
Sclentific Support 1,695 1,705 1,817 -112
Criminal Justice 1,276 1,276 939 337
Director of Finance
Information Systems and Technology 4,626 4,616 4,249 367
Business Support Unit 1,963 1,963 2,111 -148
Fleet Costs 853 853 837 16
Finance and Procurement 713 653 543 110
Total Budget — Force 95.650 | 95677 95,015 662
Revenue Reserves — Force Surplus -2,279 -2,156 -1,761 =395
Driver Retraining Scheme 0 0 291 -291
In itiat nded From
Re::ra\:el:nlatwes Fu 0 123 147 24
B e o o[ w|
Total Revenue Reserves Movements -2,279 -2,279 1,122 -1,157
Total Budget 99,009 | 99,099 99,099 0

5.13 The final outturn positions highlighted within the Variation Statement above demonstrate
that the Commissioner's budgets were £495K under budget In total. Significant savings
of £144K were achieved within the Office as a result of staff vacancies and prudent
financial management during the year to contain non-essential expenditure. An under-
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spend of £47K was realised from lower than anticipated costs and a review of
commissioned services. The Estates budgets were £302k underspent primarily due to
a rates rebate which arose following a proactive review of rateable values. The
Commissioner has created an earmarked reserve to support sustainability and
transformational Initiatives.

5.14 The Varlation Statement above shows that the Chief Constable costs overall were
£662K below the revised budget for the year. An explanation of the main reasons for the
more material variances in budget for 2018/19 is provided below:

vi.

vil.

viii.

Chief Constable's Office: In total, this budget overspent by £216K with around
£165K of this being against pay headings. This included the cost consequences
of putting two officers through the Senior Command Course and the need to
backfill. Non pay budgets also over-spent by £41K as a result of additional
events and subscriptions. Income was down by £10K on the budgeted position.

Corporate Budgets; Savings of £291K had been achieved against police staff
budgets by utilising staff in the dellvery of IT Capital Project Implementations. In
addition savings of £481K were gained through procurement and austerity
measures in respect of non-pay budgets and capital charges. Income and other
minor budgets were down by £266K primarily being accounted for by reductions
in Police Led Prosecution income and Mutual Aid / Special Services recelpts.

Externally Funded National / Regional / Local Services: A net overspend of

£259K was experienced predominantly against Regional Collaborative Activity.

Staff Association: A net overspend of £40K is recorded against this budget due
to backfilling of vacancies elsewhere in the organisation.

People's Seryices: People’s Services budgets were £151K underspent
predominantly thanks to grants received to offset additional setup costs of the
new Police Education Qualification Framework.

Leqgal, Informatlon, Efficiency, Health and Safety: An overspend of £409K has

been experienced against this budget which in the main is accounted for by the
additional staffing costs assoclated with a revised Information Management
Structure and legal fees associated with past and impending proceedings .

Retirements. Major Operations & Corporate Communications: The Force saved

£271K against these headings with the biggest contributors being ill health
retirement /pension cost budgets and addltional mutual aid receipts.

Professional Standards: A net saving of £40K is recorded against professional
standards which arose across pay and non-pay headings with the biggest factor
being savings against IT budgets.

tional Bud anage: the istant Chief Constable: Local Paolicing
costs came in within £80K of the budget overall despite considerable pressure
on overtime budgets of around £449K. Additional Mutual Aid and Counter
Terrorism Firearms Officer reimbursements and receipts and a slight saving on
police pay headings brought this back within budgets at year end. Investigations
and scientific support came in very slightly over budget at £32K and £112K
respectively. The Criminal Justice Department underspent against the budget by
£337K which mainly related to speed awareness training volumes being higher
than anticipated.

Finance Directorate: This Directorate encompasses the Corporate Finance,
Fleet, ICT, Business Support and Procurement Departments of the Force.
Additional income, non-pay procurement and austerity measures resulted in a
large planned underspend of £367K against ICT budgets. Income receipts for
Firearms Licensing and Vehicle Recovery were lower than anticipated which
have resulted in an offsetting overspend of £148K against Business Support
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headings. Fleet and Finance/ Procurement headings were under budget by
£126K due to staffing vacancies and additional income recsipts.

5.156 The final revenue outtum position included a number of transfers to and from reserves
as shown in the following table:

" —
MOVEMENT IN USEABLE RESERVES VS BUDGET 2018/19
Actual Opaning Closing
Budgeted Contribution Actual Differenca Balance In Balance in
Contribution  'from'  Contribution 'to' Net Contribution from Budget Reserves Rasarves
2018/19 2018719 2018/19 2018/19 2018/19 2018/19  2018/19
£'000 £'000 £000 £'000 £000 £'000 £'000
Revenus Reserves
Earmarked Revenue Reserve -2,176 -2,159 0 -2,159 17 3,495 1,336
Drug Intervention -40 -35 0 =35 5 170 135
Driver Retraining Sl_:heme -25 -62 353 291 316 1,002 1,293
Proceeds of Crime Act -38 -39 17 -22 16 241 219
Regional Collaboration Reserve 0 =203 128 =75 -75 465 390
CC - Operationl Fund 0 0 3gs 385 385 o] 385
Sustalnabllity and Transformation 0 0 493 493 493 0 493
Tatal Revenue -2,279 -2,498 L376 <1133 1,157 5373 4,251
'General Reserve
General Reserve 0 0 0 o 0 4,032 4,032
Total General 0 o o 0 0 4,032 4,032
Total Revenue Reserves -2,279 -2,498 1,376 -1,122 1,157 9,405 8,283
Capital
Capltal Reserve -3,412 -3,097 0 -3,097 318 8,883 5,786
Capltal Grants Unapplied -324 6542 317 =325 0 750 425
Total Capital Resarves -3,736 -3,739 317 3422 318 9,633 6,211
Total Capital and Revenue Rasarves -6,016 -6,237 1,604 -,544 1475 19,038 14,494
Other Reserves (held on behatf of Otharsl
Go Safe Reserve 0 o 241 241 241 1,480 1,721
Total Other Rasarvas 1] 4] 241 241 241 1,480 1,721
Net Resarves Movements -5,016 -6,237 1,935 -4,302 1,717 20,518 16,216

5.16 In relation to capital schemes and expenditure, a summary of spending Is shown in the
Table on the following page. A sum of £4.637 million has been spent against a revised
budget of £4.479 million. As shown in the Table above, a sum of £3.422 million will be
transferred from reserves and grants held for the year which is £0.318 million lower than
the £3.736 million that was planned due to slippage with capital schemes.
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2018/19
Original Revised {Over} /
Capital Expenditurs Budget Budget Actwal Under  Reasor for Over / Underspand
£000 £000 £900  £000
The refurbishment of the estate has continued but some delays were
Operational Land and Buildings 5,684 2,308 1,048 1,261 experienced with works slipping into 2019/20
Savings against Saferty Camera Partnership vehicles were realised
along with some additionai expenditure which was offset by recelpts
Vehicles 953 953 1,036 -83 from the sale of vehicles
Delays In replacing Digttal Video Evidence Equipment {£263K),
Alrwave Replacement sets (£272K), In Car video equipment fitting
(E243K) and CCTV Equipment [£124K). These will be delivered In
IT and Other Strategic Projects 3260 3217 2283 934 2019/20
Total Spending 9837 €A 4367 i1
Original Revised (Over) /
Capital Financing Budget Budget Actual Under  Reeson forOves / Underspend
£000 £003 £000 £000
Capital Recelpts -2000  -2,402 -893  -1,809 Delay In Sale of Friars Park but increase vehicle capital recelpts
Direct Revenue Financing 0 149 -7 -142 Go 5afe vehicle budget - underspend
NPAS Capltal Creditor -23 23 -3 0
Capltal Reserves -7556 -3263  -3.097 -166 Reduced reserves requirement as a result of programme slippage
Capital Grant and Contributions -318 -642 -647 S Home Office and Mobile Data Grant
Total Funding 9,897 5479 4367 -2112

5.17 The final reserves position for the Commissioner shows a figure of £16.215 million held

as at 31" March 2019 which Incorporates a sum of £6.212 million to support future
capital budget commitments, a general reserve of £4.032 million for unforeseen events
and a sum of £1.336 million that is required to fund predicted future MTFP revenue
contributions and deficits. This includes a balance of £1.721 million which is held on
behalf of the road safety partnership “Go Safe” and £0.388 million being held for
reglonal collaborative arrangements along with a number of earmarked reserves which
are held to support specific projects including two new reserves to support
sustainabliity/ transformational projects of £0.494 million and an operational fund of
£0.385 million to assist the force in dealing with peaks and troughs in operational
activity.

6 Risks, Opportunities and the Medlum Term Financlal Qutlook.

6.1

6.2

Risks are managed at all levels of the organisations through the Governance Structure
and a Corporate Risk Register Is used to record, manage and mitigate the main risks
which could affect the dellvery of Police and Crime Plan outcomes. The Risk Register Is
a live document which is updated at least weekly. The main risks that remaining
outstanding at the end of 2018/19 include:

* Financial resllience and management

* Governance and financial controls In respect of Collaborative actlvities

* Local avallabllity of services for the forensic medical examination of children
+ Sustalnability of external forensics markets

The Risk Reglster is monitored regularly in order to ensure that risks are allocated an
owner responsible for applying appropriate mitigations. Further details in relation to risk
management are included In the Annual Govemance Statement which is Included as
part of this document.
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6.3

6.4

6.5

6.6

6.7

6.8

6.9

6.10

6.11

In terms of the Medium Term Financial Qutlook, Dyfed Powys Police has faced
significant financial challenges since 2010 due to reductions in funding from central
government along with cost pressures and continual changes in the demand for policing
services.

The Government have stated that a Comprehensive Spending Review (CSR) Is likely in
late 2019, albeit there are uncertainties as to timing due to the ongoing Brexit
negotiations. A number of national working groups have been formed to gather
information and data to support the submisslons to the Government which will be aimed
to facllitate their conslideration. Albeit that the outcomes will remain to be seen, a
consistent national approach to budgetary assumptions was been advocated by the
Police and Crime Commissioners Treasurers Society which was to assume a cash flat
seftlement for 2020/21. Clearly there are risks attached to this assumption and this
position will be monitored carefully.

The position on the Formula Funding Review is also uncertain however it Is understood
that the Home Office may look to Implement changes to formula after the CSR. The
impact of the last unimplemented review would have resulted in £8M less for Dyfed
Powys and these reductions have therefore been factored into the MTFP incorporating
a reduction of 4% in central grant from 2021/22 onwards.

As outlined previously, there has been much independent commentary over the last
year in relation to Police sustainability, funding, resilience and increased burdens which
include Increases to employer's pension contributions which highlight and confirm the
very critical and precarious posltion that Dyfed-Powys and the police service In general
face.

The provisional settlement was announced by the Policing Minister on the 13"
December 2018 which included headline figures of £970m additional funding with
approximately £813m for local policing: £153m pension grant, £161m additional core
grant funding to provide all forces with a 2.1% increase and £509m from additional
precept flexibility by raising precept by £24 per year per Band D property.

In outlining the provisional settlements both the Home Secretary and Policing Minister
recognised the police services engagement over the last year which has facllitated
Governments appreciation that crime is both changing and increasing in complexity
which has resultant impacts on both the demand for resources and the capabilities
required to enable response.

The 2019/20 settlement for Dyfed-Powys was £50.348m which was £1.035m or 2.1%
higher than 2018/19. However, it is vital that this Increase is considered In light of the
very significant and unforeseen pressures which have arisen from changes to the
employer's contribution rate for Police Officer pensions. A new specific grant for
pensions has also been awarded for 2019/20 amounting to £1.302m, but even in
addition to the uplift in core grant, still leaves a shortfall of £535k to be met.

Following a rigorous process of scrutiny and deliberations over financial assumptions,
risks that continue to threaten the communities and investment priorities which included
a number of seminars and presentations to the Commissioner, his staff, the Force
Executive Board, Wales Audlt Office representatives, Joint Audit Committee, Police and
Crime Panel Members and local Members of Parliament the Commissioner submitted
his precept proposal for 2019/20 and assumptions that underpin the MTFP to 2024/25
to the Dyfed-Powys Police and Crime Panel on 25™ January 2019.

This proposal was duly supported which raised the average band D property precept by
£24 to £248.56, a 10.7% increase. This increase was In accordance with the flexibilities
advocated by the Government and will raise a total precept of £55.247m. This will
provide a total of central and local funding of £106.897m representing a 7.87% increase
on funding levels in 2018/19.
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This, once agaln, sees Dyfed-Powys with the lowest council tax precept in Wales of
£248.56 compared with £257.52 in South Wales, £255.53 in Gwent and £278.10 in
North Wales. It is also worth highlighting that Dyfed-Powys has had the fifth lowest
councll tax precept Increases across England and Wales since 2012/13. The
Commissloner has included assumptions of 5% year on year increases in precept for
the MTFP.

The Plan Incorporates an assumption of 2% growth in pay and inflationary pressures
from 2020/21 onwards and has modelled known growth and cost increase pressures
and potential loss of specific grants. In addition, the continued reduction in the annual
contribution from reserves and an Incremental Increase in contribution to capital
financing and charges to support the forward Capltal Programme have been included.
Further additional spending on a number of national, regional and local priorities along
with the additional costs arising from changes to police pensions have been included.

The Force continues to identify efficiency measures and has a cost reduction plan which
Is aiming to capitalise on national, regional and local Initiatives including the National
Commercial Board, Police ICT Company and All Wales Collaboration activities. This
plan assumes a significant reshaping of the workforce and cost base through efficlency
and productivity which will enable the Commissioner and Force to set a balanced and
funded Medium Term Financial position for both revenue and capital whilst protecting
the standard of service for the communities of Dyfed Powys.

MEDIUM TERM FINANCIAL | 19-20 | 20-21 | 21-22 | 22-23 | 23-24 | 24-25

PLAN - REVENUE

£M £m £M £M £Em £M

Central and Local Funding

Predicted Central Funding

Local Precept .
Total Funding -106.9 | -109.8 | -110.9| 1121 | -113.7| -115.5
Revenue Spending

Predicted Spending 1098 | 111.7| 1159 1101 | 122.1| 125.2
Efficiencies delivered for 19-20 0 0 0 0 0
Cumulative Annual Deflclt 0 1.8 5.1 6.9 B4 9.7

Future Cost Reduction Plan
Sustainability and Capital

Collaboration and Income

Demand and Productivity

Workforce Planning

| Procurement and Non Pay

Annual Cost Reductions

Cumulative Annual

Anticlpated Revenue Deficit | 00/ 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

6.156

6.16

The Commissioner set a capital programme for 2019/20 to 2023/24 of £48.206 million
which Includes investment in Estates, Fleet and ICT infrastructure. This investment
has been prioritlsed towards strategic priorities, unavoldable spending, areas that
reduce future revenue expenditure and recognises the need to be adequately equipped
to face the changing demands of 21* century policing.

There has been a significant reduction In core capltal funding allocated by the Home
office over recent years. In 2019/20 a total capital grant of £325K will be available for
the Commissioner. In addition, central funding will be available to part fund the major
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6.17

6.18

6.19

6.20

7.0
7.1

7.2

7.3

communication programme, although £2.6 million of the future costs will fall on the
Commissioner to fund.

In order to meet future capital investment requirements and mitigate the reductions in
capltal grant funding, the MTFP and capital programme include revenue contributions to
capital from 2019/20 and also Includes external borrowing requirements to support the
major estates developments. The Commissioner considers his Capltal Strategy annually
and also assesses his borrowing requirements annually to ensure they are prudent,
sustainable and affordable. These documents are shown at:

http://www.d -pcc.org.uk/media/7689/capital-st -2019-20-002.pdf

Jiwww.d -pce.org.uk/medi 86/2019-03-07-agenda-13-treasury-
management-strategy.pdf

The Commissloner considers and publishes an annual reserves strategy which
underpins the MTFP and Its assessment of risk exposure and mitigation measures. The
Reserves strategy considers the adequacy of general reserves and takes account of the
strategic, operational and financial risks facing Dyfed Powys. These conslderations also
take cognisance of Home Office guidance on Police Reserves. The Reserves Strategy
is shown at:

Jwww.d -pce.org.uk/imedia/7688/reserves-girategy-2019-20-002.pdf

The Force has submitted its second Force Management Statement to Her Majesty’s
Inspectorate of Constabularies and Flre and Rescue Services, which comprehensively
sets out the main operational and business support challenges that the Force Is facing.
This considers the capability and capacity of the Force In the context of dealing with
current and future demand. In summary the document points to challenges which
largely mirror those areas already Identified in the Risk Register but aiso highlights
challenges In relation to vulnerabillity, domestic abuse and violent / sexual offending In
terms of anticipated future demands.

The Commissioner and Force also face a number of unknown potential future financial
commitments which are referred to further in the contingent liabllities and pensions
notes note including:

* Police Pension Legal Challenge - Career Average Revalued Eamings

* Undercover Policing Inquiry

* Dedicated Source Handling Unlt On-Call Allowance Claims

Basls of Preparation and Presentation

These are the seventh statutory accounts prepared under the new govemance
arrangements. Both the Commissioner and Chlef Constable as separate legal entities
must produce their own Statement of Accounts, with the Commissioner being
responsible for production of the Group Accounts, within which the Commissioner's
accounts are contained.

The Accounts and Audit (Wales) Regulations 2015 require local government bodles to
prepare a Statement of Accounts in accordance with proper practices. The Chartered
Institute of Public Finance & Accountancy’s Code of Practice is identified as
representing proper practices.

The following is an explanation of the statements that follow, their purpose and the
relationship between them:

+ Independent Auditor's Report - this sets out the opinion of the external auditor,
the Wales Audit Office, on whether the Group accounts presented give a ‘true and
fair view’ of the financial position and operations of the Commissioner for 2018/19;

+ Statement of Responslbilities for the Statement of Accounts - this statement
sets out the responsibilities of the Commissioner and his Chief Finance Officer;
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Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement - this core statement
summarises the resources that have been generated and consumed in providing
policing and crime reduction services during the year. It includes all day to day
expenses and related income on an accruals basls, as well as transactions
measuring the value of fixed assets actually consumed and the real projected value
of retirement benefits eamed by employees in the year;

Balance Sheet - this core statement shows the value as at the Balance Sheet date
of the assets and liabilities recognised by the Group. The Commissioner owns the
land, bulldings and other assets used by the Force. The net assets (assets less
liabilities) are matched by the usable and unusable reserves;

Notes to the financial statements - these provide additional information that
further explains items included within the main statements with an aim of Improving
the readers understanding of the main financial statements and sets out the
Accounting Policies used as the basis of preparing the financial statements as
required by the Code of Practice;

Movement In Reserves Statement - this statement shows the movement in the
year on the reserves held by the Group, analysed into usable reserves (monies
which can be applied to fund capital expenditure or to reduce local taxation) and
unusable reserves (monies that cannot be used to provide services and exist
through the application of accounting standards, for example, the pensions
reserves which match the pension labllity);

Cash Flow Statement - this statement summarises changes to cash and cash
equlvalents during the reporting period;

Expenditure and Funding Analysis - this statement shows how annual
expenditure is used and funded by the Group from resources as reported by
management, split across directorates and services in comparison with those
resources consumed or eamed by the Group reported In accordance with generally
accepted accounting practices;

Police Penslon Fund Account - is a statement that shows expenditure, income,
assets and liabilities pertaining to Police Pensions in the year. The account shows
the top up grant due from the Group to the Pension Fund Account. Subsequently
the Home Office reimburses the Group for money paid over to the account and
effectively underwrites the deficit. This practice would work in reverse If the
Pensions Fund Account were to show a surplus at the year-end;

An Annual Governance Statement is included within this Statement of Accounts
that sets out details of how the Commissioner and Chief Constable exercise
governance over their affairs. The Statement is a statutory document for each
corporation sole, albelt a combined statement has been produced for 2018/19
which aims to aid transparency and understanding to the reader, clearly
demonstrating where arrangements are consistent and where they differ between
the Commissioner and the Chief Constable. The statement includes an annual
review of the adequacy of the governance amangements, and also provides
assurance on the systems of internal control.

23



POLICE & CRIME COMMISSIONER FOR DYFED POWYS

Statement of Responsibliities

The purpose of this statement is to set out the responsibilities of the Commissioner and the
Chief Financial Officer in respect of the Statement of Accounts.

e Commission sibilities
The Commissioner is required to:

¢ make arrangements for the proper administration of its financial affairs and to secure
that one of its officers has the responsibility for the administration of those affairs, that
officer is the Chief Financial Officer;

e manage its affairs to secure economic, efficient and effective use of resources and
safeguard its assets; and

¢ approve the Statement of Accounts.
| approve the Statement of Accounts for financial year 2018/19.

Dbl L fpf— D" sl 2019

Police & Crime Commissioner for Dyfed Powys

Th i inancial Officer” ibilities

The Chief Financlal Officer is responsible for the preparation of the Statement of Accounts
in accordance with proper practices as set out in the CIPFA/LASAAC Code of Practice on
Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom (the Code).

In preparing this Statement of Accounts, the Chief Financial Officer has:
» selected suitable accounting policies and then applied them consistently;
e made judgements and estimates that were reasonable and prudent; and
o complied with the local authority Code.

The Chief Financial Officer has also:
e kept proper accounting records which were up to date; and

o taken reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other
Irregularities.

| certify that the Statement of Accounts presents a true and fair view of the financial
position of the Group/Commissioner at the reporting date and of its expenditure and
income for the year ended 31% March 2019.

27/ "
"6%""%-“:7/ B LL,L; IR
Chlef Financé Officer (‘7 Date | .|
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The Independent auditor’s report of the Auditor General for Wales to the Police
and Crime Commissioner for Dyfed Powys

Report on the audit of the financlal statements

Opinlon

| have audited the financial statements of:

e Police and Crime Commissioner for Dyfed Powys;

s Dyfed Powys Police Pension Fund; and

o Police and Crime Commissioner for Dyfed Powys Police Group

for the year ended 31 March 2019 under the Public Audit (Wales) Act 2004.

The Police and Crime Commissioner for Dyfed Powys' financial statements comprise the
Movement in Reserves Statement, Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement,
the Balance Sheet, the Cash Flow Statement, and the related notes, including a summary
of significant accounting policies.

Dyfed Powys Police Pension Fund’s financial statements comprise the Fund Account and
the Net Assets Statement and related notes.

The Police and Crime Commissioner for Dyfed Powys Police Group's financial statements
comprise the Group Movement in Reserves Statement, the Group Comprehensive Income
and Expenditure Statement, the Group Balance Sheet and the Group Cash Flow
Statement and the related notes, including a summary of significant accounting policies.
The financial reporting framework that has been applied in their preparation is applicable
law and the Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom 2018-19
based on International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs).

In my opinion the financial statements:

¢ give a true and fair view of the financial position of the Police and Crime Commissioner
for Dyfed Powys; the Dyfed Powys Police Pension Fund; and the Police and Crime
Commissioner for Dyfed Powys Police Group as at 31 March 2019 and of its Income
and expenditure for the year then ended; and

» have been properly prepared in accordance with legislative requirements and the Code
of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdorm 2018-19.

Basls for opinion

| conducted my audit in accordance with applicable law and International Standards on
Auditing in the UK (ISAs (UK)). My responsibilities under those standards are further
described in the auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements section of
my report. | am independent of the Police and Crime Commissioner for Dyfed Powys,
Dyfed Powys Police Pension Fund and the Police and Crime Commissioner for Dyfed
Powys Police Group in accordance with the ethical requirements that are relevant to my
audit of the financial statements in the UK including the Financial Reporting Council’s
Ethical Standard, and | have fulfilled my other ethical responsibilities in accordance with
these requirements. | believe that the audit evidence | have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for my opinion.

Conclusions relating to going concern

| have nothing to report in respect of the following matters in relation to which the ISAs
(UK) require me to report to you where:

» the use of the going concern basis of accounting in the preparation of the financial
statements is not appropriate; or

» the responsible financial officer has not disclosed in the financial statements any

identified material uncertainties that may cast significant doubt about the Police and
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Crime Commissioner for Dyfed Powys or the Police and Crime Commissioner for Dyfed
Powys Police Group’s ability to continue to adopt the going concern basis of accounting
for a period of at least twelve months from the date when the financial statements are
authorised for issue.

Other information

The responsible financial officer is responsible for the other information in the annual report
and accounts. The other information comprises the information included in the annual
report other than the financial statements and my auditor's report thereon. My opinion on
the financial statements does not cover the other information and, except to the extent
otherwise explicitly stated later in my report, | do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with my audit of the financlal statements, my responsibility is to read the
other information to identify material inconsistencies with the audited financial statements
and to identify any information that is apparently materially incorrect based on, or materially
inconsistent with, the knowledge acquired by me in the course of performing the audit. If |
become aware of any apparent material misstatements or inconsistencies | consider the
implications for my report.

Report on other requirements

Opinion on other matters
In my opinion, based on the work undertaken in the course of my audit:

o the information contained in the Narrative Report for the financial year for which the
financlal statements are prepared is consistent with the financial statements and the
Narrative Report has been prepared in accordance with the Code of Practice on Local
Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom 2018-19;

¢ The information given in the Governance Statement for the financial year for which the
financial statements are prepared is consistent with the financial statements and the
Governance Statement has been prepared in accordance with guidance.

Matters on which | report by exception

In the light of the knowledge and understanding of the Police and Crime Commissioner for
Dyfed Powys, the Dyfed Powys Police Pension Fund and the Police and Crime
Commissioner for Dyfed Powys Police Group and their environment obtained in the course
of the audit, | have not identified material misstatements in the Narrative Report or the
Governance Statement.

| have nothing to report in respect of the following matters, which | report to you, if, in my
opinion:

e proper accounting records have not been kept;

¢ the financial statements are not in agreement with the accounting records and returns:
or
¢ | have not received all the information and explanations | require for my audit.

Certificate of completion of audit

| ceriify that | have completed the audit of the accounts of the Police and Crime
Commissioner for Dyfed Powys, the Dyfed Powys Police Pension Fund and the Police and
Crime Commissioner for Dyfed Powys Police Group in accordance with the requirements
of the Public Audit (Wales) Act 2004 and the Auditor General for Wales’ Code of Audit
Practice.

Responsibilities

Responsibliities of the responsibie financial officer for the financial statements

As explained more fully in the Statement of Responsibilities for the Statement of Accounts

set out on page 24, the responsible financial officer is responsible for the preparation of the
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statement of accounts, including the Police and Crime Commissioner for Dyfed Powys
Police Group financial statements and Dyfed Powys Police Pension Fund's financial
statements, which give a true and fair view, and for such internal control as the responsible
financial officer determines is necessary to enabile the preparation of statements of
accounts that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the statement of accounts, the responsible financial officer is responsible for
assessing the Police and Crime Commissioner for Dyfed Powys, the Dyfed Powys Police
Pension Fund and the Police and Crime Commissioner for Dyfed Powys Police Group’s
ability to continue as a going concem, disclosing as applicable, matters related to going
concemn and using the going concem basis of accounting unless deemed inappropriate.

Auditor’s responsibliities for the audit of the financlal statements

My objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements
as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue
an auditor's report that includes my opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of
assurance but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs (UK) will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud
or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of
these financlal statements.

A further description of the auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

is located on the Financial Reporting Council's website:

www.frc.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities.

This description forms part of my auditor's report.

A

Anthony J Barrett 24 Cathedral Road
For and on behalf of the Auditor General for Wales Cardiff
31 July 2019 CF11 9LJ

The maintenance and integrity of the Police and Crime Commissioner for Dyfe.d Poxluys' website
is his responsibility; the work carmied out by auditors does not involve consideration of these
matters and accordingly auditors accept no responsibility for any changes that may have
occurred to the financial statements since they were initially presented on the website.
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Expenditure and Funding Analysis

The Expenditure and Funding Analysis shows how annual expenditure is used and funded by the
Group from resources (govemnment grants, rents and council tax) in comparison with those resources
consumed or earned by the Group in accordance with generally accepted accounting practices. It
also shows how this expenditure is allocated for decision making purposes between the Group's
Directorates/Services/Departments. Income and Expenditure accounted for under generally
accepted accounting practices Is presented more fully in the Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure Statement. The 2017/18 Statement has been restated to reflect changes made to Force
Governance Structures and Reporting Arrangements. Please refer to Note 2 'Previous Period
Adjustments’ for an explanation of these changes.

[ Net Expenditure Adjustments between Net Expanditure in the
Expenditure & Funding Analysis 2018119 | C'gideriisioche | Fonenaend | GO
| defalls in Note 7 Statement
E'000 | £000 £'000

POLICE AND CRIME COMMISSIONER
Commissloning and Office Costs 1,825 o2 2,017
Estates _ 3,435 380 3,825 |
TOTAL POLICE & CRIME COMMISSIONER'S OFFICE | 5,360 482 5,842 |
CHIEF CONSTABLE .
Budgoets Nananed Corporately by the Chiaf Conatable

| Chief Constable's Office 1,333 237 | 1,570

[ Centrally Managed Corporate Budgets 958_ (3,334) {2,376)

' Externally Funded NationalReglonal/Local Services 1,447 266 1,713
Staff Assoclations a 244 ) 206
Budoets Mansaed bv the Deputv Chief Constable i
People’s Services 2,620 457 | 3,077
Legal, Information, Efficlency, Health & Safety 3,102 4 3,536
hReﬂmmants. Major Operations and Communications 68 934
Professionsl Standards 1,080 216 | 1,306
Budgets Manaded by the Assistant Chief Constable
Locai Polleing 55,480 13273 | 66,753 |

| Investigations - 1| 20,084 4,877 24,761

| Sclentific Support 1,818 208 | 2,024

| Criminal Justice = - - 930 270 1,218
Budgets Mapaged by the Dirsctor of Finance
Information Systems and Technology 4,250 3s9 4,648
Business Support Unit 2,110 354 2,464
Fleet Costs 8a7 87 024
Finance and Procuremant 543 81 824
m 0 78,731 78,731
detall |

| TOTAL CHIEF CONSTABLE 97.719 96,485 194,204 |

| NET COST OF SERVICES 103,079 96,067 200,048 |
Other Income and Expenditure (99,100) 11,640 {87,460)
SURPLUS OR DEFICIT (Before Reserve Transfers) 3,019 108,807 112,586

| Transfers from Earmarked Reserves (3.979)
SURPLUS OR DEFICIT FOR THE YEAR 0
Opening General Fund Balance as at 1* April 2017 (4,032) .

_Les Deficit on General Fund Balance In Year 0 | B |
Closing General Fund Balance as at March 2018 {4,032) |
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Net Expanditure Adjustments betwesn Net Expenditure In the
Exp.ndlt:re & Funding Analysis Chargsable to the Accounting and Funding Comprehensive Income and
2017/18 (Restated) General Fund Basis — detalls In Note 7 Expenditure Statement

£'000 £'000 £000
POLICE AND CRIME COMMISSIONER
Commiasioning and Office Costa 1,788 105 1,804
Estates 3,836 573 4,508
TOTAL POLICE & CRIME
COMMISSIONER'S OFFICE 108 018 6412
CHIEF CONSTABLE
Buidgets Managed Corporately by the
Chief Constable
Chief Consiable’s Office 1,277 208 1,573
Cenfrally Managed Corporate Budgets 5,840 (2,920) | 3,020
Externally Funded National/Reglonal/Local
Services (671) {16) (687)
Staff Assoclations 217 65 282
Budgets Managed by the Deputy Chief
Constable
People's Sarvices 2,508 488 3,005
Legal, Information, Efficlency, Health &
Safety 3,231 559 3,790
Retirements, Major Operations and
Corporate Communications 675 84 959
Profeaslonal Standards 1,182 315 1,507
Budgots Managed by the Assistant Chief
Conatable
Local Pollcing 52,956 15,273 88,228
Investigations 19,587 6,382 25,979
Sclentific Support 1,504 175 1,679
Criminal Justica 1,007 295 1,302
Budnets Managed by the Director of
Elnance
Information Systemns and Technology 4,228 401 4,629
Buelness Support Unit 1,807 382 2,269
Flest Cosls 884 14 951
Finance and Procurement 800 83 683
Non-distributed costs 82 0 92
Exceptional itemas -
- Abnormal Loads — Windfarms (603} 1] (803)
- Operation Heath 798 0 798
TOTAL CHIEF CONSTABLE 87,507 21,950 119,457
NET COST OF SERVICES 103,241 22,628 125,869
Other Income and Expenditure (98,816) 14,603 (82,013)
gmo“ DEFICIT (Before Reserve 6,625 37231 43,56
Transfers from Earmarked Reserves (6,157)
SURPLUS OR DEFICIT FOR THE YEAR 468
Opening General Fund Balance as &t 1*
Apdl 2016 (4,500)
Less Deficit on General Fund Balanca in 468
Yaar
Closing General Fund Balance as at (4,032)

March 2018
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Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement

The following Statement summarises the resources that have been generated and
consumed in providing policing and crime reduction services during the year.

The 2017/18 Statement has been restated to reflect changes made to Force
Governance Structures and Reporting Arrangements. Please refer to Note 2 ‘Previous
Period Adjustments’ for an explanation of these changes.
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Group 1 Commissioner
Gross Gross Net Comprehensive Income and Gross Gross Net
Expenditure Income | Expenditure Expenditure Statement i Expsnditure | Income | Expenditure
201819
£'000 | £'000 £'000 £7000 £'000 £'000
POLICE AND CRIME
|=—— | COMMISSIONER |
2,418 | (401) | 2,017 | Commissioning and Office Costs 8,077 | (4,080) 2,017
3,888 (63) 3,825 | Estates 3,688 | (63) 3,825
TOTAL POLICE & CRIME
6,306 “M, 8842 | CouNISSIONERS OFFICE 9,985 |  (4,123) 5,842
CHIEF CONSTABLE
Budgets Managed Corporatelv by
the Chisf Constable
1,576 ) 1,570 | Chief Constable's Office 0 ®) | (®
1,666 (4,042) (2,376) | Centrally Managed Corporate Budgets 0| (4,042 {4.042)
| Extemally Funded
5,442 (.726) 1,713 | \atonaliRegionallLocal Services 0| (3.720) (3729) |
208 0 296 | Staff Assoclations 0 0 0
Bucdgets Managed by the Daputy
- _Chisf Constable
3,357 (280) 3,077 | People's Services 0 (280) (260) |
3,772 (236) 3,536 k‘g:};{y“f""“‘""“' Efficiency, Heaith 0| (o3 (238)
Retirements, Major Operations and . |
1,108 (174) 934 COW’:',';:’ cor:rjrfﬂnlgﬁ_uns"sm 0 (174) (174)
1,320 (23) 1,308 | Professional Standards 0 (23) (23)
Budgets Managed by the Assistant
| Chief Constable = ,
70,996 (2,242) 68,753 | Local Policing 713 | (2,242) {1,520)
26,006 (1,245) 24,761 | Investigations - 0 (1245 | (1,245) |
2,040 (18) 2,024 | Sclentific Support 0 (18) (18)
2,831 {1,613) 1,218 | Criminal Justica 0| (1813 (1.613)
Buggsts Managed by the Director of '
Einance
4,742 (93) | 4,649 | Information Systems and Technology 0 (03) (93)
2,774 | (310) 2,484 | Business Support Unit 0 (310) (310) |
1,208 | (284) 924 | Fleet Costs 0 (284) (284)
881 (57) 624 | Finance and Procurement 0 (57) (57)_
208,554 (14,350) 194,204 | TOTAL CHIEF CONSTABLE 845 | (14,350) (13,505)
214,860 {14,814) 200,048 | COST OF SERVICES 10,810 | (18,473) (7.689)
538 | (19.710) (19,172) gx"‘p:'ng’{::“"" Income and 1" 538 | (19,710) (18,172)
32,080 (635) 31,134 gg':ggg Investment Income & 12 825 (a35) | (310)
] {68,422) {90,422) Lﬁgﬂ and non-spaclfic grant 18 0| (99422) (99,422)
0 0 0 _E,f’:'%";"""'"“m('m'gm"p 299,153 0 239,153
247,467 |  (134,881) 112,506 | urphus)ideficit on Provision of 251,126 | (138,540} 112,586
Surplus or deficit on revaluation of 1 N
0 | non-current assate ’ 2 - 0_
Actuarlal (gains)lcases on penslon
61,200 assatsniaﬁiﬁlesm 2 280
Commiesloning Costs rou
B 0 | o (intra-group 80,914
Oth re¢hansive Income and
81,200 “p:;:fdl“: e 1,200
Total comprehensive incom d
193,786 up_ndm'; XL 193,706 |
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Group Commissioner
Gross Expd Gross | NetExpd Comprshensive Income and . | Gross Gross Net Expd
income Expendlture Statement 2017/48 | 5 | Exd Income
. (Restated) |
£'000 £'000 £'000 | o0 £000 |  £'000
POLICE AND CRIME COMMISSIONER
2,483 (579) | 1,804 | Commissloning and Office Costs 8,085 (4,181) 1,004 |
4,574 (66) | 4,508 | Estates 4,574 (66) 4,508
7,057 (B45) a412 | O o & 10,650 4,247 8412 |
CHIEF CONSTABLE
Budgets Managed Corporately by the
| Chief Constable -
1,588 (18) 1,573 | Chief Conatable's Office 0 {18) (16)
7,011 (3,901) 3,020 | Centrally Managed Corporate Budgets 0 (3,901) (3.901)
5,439 (6,126) (ee7) | Externally Funded Netional/Reglonal/Local 0 6126) |  (6,126)
282 0 262 | Staff Associations 0 0 0
Budgets Managed by the Deputy Chief
Constable B
3,004 | 89) | 3,005 | People’s Services 0 {80) (89)
4,034 (244) 3,760 ;:g:tli Information, Efficlency, Health & 0 (244) (244)
99 34 99 | Comorate Gomrounicatione 0 CON
1,509 @ 1,507 | Professional Standards 0 @ 2
Budgets Manaaed by the Assistant Chief
Constable
68,758 (527) 68,229 | Local Policing 713 (527) 188
28,205 (318) 25,979 | Investigations 0 (318) (318)
1679 | 0 1,679 | Sclentific Support 0 0 0
1,812 (510) 1,302 | Criminal Justice - 0 (510) (510)
Bucdaets Managed by the Director of
Einance |
4,629 (0) 4,629 | Informaton Systems and Technology 0 0 0
2,638 (36) | 2,260 | Business Support Unit 0  (389) (369)
1,120 (169) 951 | Fleet Costs 0 (169) (169)
| 718 . (33) 683 | Flnance and Procurement 0| (33) (33)
82 0 02 | Non-distributed costs 2 0 2
Excsptional ltems -
187 (190) | (603) | - Abnormal Loads — Windfsrms 0 (790) (760) |
708 0| 788 | - Operation Heath 0 o 0
132,673 (13,218) 119,457 | TOTAL CHIEF CONSTABLE 713 (13,216) | (12,503)
130,720 | (13,861) 125,869 | COST OF SERVICES [ TE (17,483) (6,001)
384 {18,815) {18,451) | Other Operating Income and Expenditure 1 384 (18,815) | (18,451
34,325 (855) 33,370 gﬂ.ﬁ:ﬁ’gg Investmert Income & 12 851 (855) (304)
B 0 (96,932) {98,032) | Taxation and non-specific grant Income 13 0 {86,932) | (98,932)
[} 0 0 | Commissioning Costs (Intra-group transfer) 185,634 0 165,634
174,419 | (130,363) 43,856 | (Surplusideficit on Provision of Services 178,021 (134,185) 43,858
(20) s:rrrp::: at:‘r agtsm on revaluation of non- 22 | (20)
(1.400 | Al g s | =
[ 0 | Commissioning Costs (intra-group transfer) (167,005
(167,508) :{t::; ::lnr:nhonllu Income and (167,508)
[' (123,852) | .'I;opt::.mnr:uhmsm Income and (123,652)
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Movement In Reserves Statement

Financial Year 2018/19

Note Ref

iz

i
;

|

Fund
Balance

Total
General

Total Usable
Reserves

I

Total
Reservos

Balance at 31%
March 2018

£'000

£000

£'000

ReclassHications

Revised Balance at
31% March 2018

{4,032)

(15,628)

{19,730)

(20,480)

1,102,837

1,082,357

(38)

(38)

(38)

(4,032)

Movement In
reservas during
2018/M9:

(15,7386)

{19,768)

(20,518)

1,102,875

1,082,357

Surplus or {deficlt)
on the provision

of services

CIES

112,586

112,588

112,388

112,586

Other
Comprehensive
Income and
Expenditure

CIES

Total
Comprehensive
Income and
Expenditure

| Adjustments
betwean accounting
basls and funding
basls under
Regulations

Net
Increase/{Decreass)
before Transfers to
Earmarked
Reserves

Transfers to/from
eamarked reserves

10

112,586

(108,607)

(3.979)

81,200

81,200

112,586

(108,607)

112,586

81,200

183,786

323

{108,284)

108,284

3,970

3,078

4,302

180,484

193,786

{Increase)Decrease
In 2018/19

0

3,979

3,873

4,302

189,484

193,786

Balance at 31®
March

2019

(4,032)

r

{11, 757)

(15,769)

“42n

{16,216)

1,276,143
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Financlal Year 2017/18

Note Ref

General
Fund
Balance

Geoneral
Fund

Earmarked

Capital
Receipts
Reserve

Capital

Grants

Total Usable
Reserves

Unusable
Reserves

J

Balance at 31
March 2017

B
{4,500)

£000

£000

£'000

(21,855)

(879)

Movement In
reserves during
2017119:

(27.233)

1,233,242

1,206,009

Surplus or (dsficit)
on the provision
of services

CIES

43,856

Other
Comprehensive
Income and

Expenditure

CIES

43,856

43,856

(167,500)

{167,509)

Total
Comprehansive
Income and
Expenditure

43,856 |

Adjustments
between accounting
basis and funding
basis under
Regulations

(37.231)

(37,231)

m

Net
Increase/{Decreasa)
before Transfers to
Earmarked
Reserves

Transfars toffrom
eamarked reservas

10

(6,%567)

)

(167,509}

(123,652)

120

{37,103)

37,104

129

8,753

{130,405}

(123,652)

6,157

(Increases)Decrease
In 2017/18

6,157

)

120

8,753

(130,405)

(123,652)

Balance at 31®
March

2018

(4.032)

(15,698)

{19,730)

(750)

(20,480)

1,102,837

1,062,357
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Balance Sheet

Group Statement of Accounis 2018/19

Group Commissioner Note Group Commissioner
2017118 201718 2018/19 2018/19
£'000 £'000 £'000 £000
73,692 73,802 Eq";'l’:,:‘;hf'“"‘& 14 73.613 73,613
3,904 | 3,904 | Investment property 15 3912 3,912
94 94 | intangible assets 10 10
54 54 | Surplus Assets 14 48 48
0 0 | Adsets Under 14 104 104
6,538 6,538 | onglem 18 6,414 6,414
84,482 84,482 | Long term assets 84,101 84,101
16,189 16,189 ﬁ';g:t:::ts 16 17,620 17,620
459 | 0 | Inventories 463 0
1,013 1,913 | Assets held for sala 19 1,672 1,672
7,650 6,937 | Short term debtors 17 5,371 4,896
2,428 2,428 S::i';;g:;“h 18 2,712 2,712
0 1,172 | Intra-group transfer 0 938
- 28,639 28,839 | Current assets 27,838 27,838
(189) {189) | Short term borrowing | 16 (207) (207)
(9.852) | (2.741) | Short term creditors 20 (13.259) (2,835)
(665) (665) | Short term provisions 21 (768) (768)
0 (6,911) | Intra - group transfer 0 (10,324)
(10,506) (10,506) | Current liabilities (14,234) (14,234)
(1,947) (1,847) | Long term borrowing | 18 (1,739) (1,739)
(1,182,188) (1,182,188) I‘i’a";,‘ﬁ;g"“"“ 35 (1,371,157) (1,371,157)
(837) (837) | Long term provislons 21 (952) (952)
{1,184,972) (1,184,972) | Long term liabllities {1,373,848) {1,373,848)
(1,082,357) (1,082,357) | Net assets/llabllities (1,276,143) (1:276,143)
(20,480) (20,480) | Usable reserves 10 (16,2186) (16.216)
1,102,837 1,102,837 | Unusable reserves 22 1,292,359 1,202,350
1,082,357 1,082,357 | Total reserves 1,276,143 1,276,143
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POLICE & CRIME COMI2ISSIONER FOR DYFED POWYS

Cash Flow Statement

Group Commissloner Note Group Commissloner
201718 201718 2018119 2018M9
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
Net (surplus) or deficit on
43,856 43,856 the provision of services CIES 112,588 112,586
Adjustments to net surplus
or deficlt on the provision of
{43,551) (43,551) services for non-cash 23 {117.883) {117,683)
movemenis
Adjustments for ltems
included in the net surplus
519 619 | or deflclt on the provision of 23 1,161 1,151
sarvices that are Investing
and financing activities
Net cash flows from
824 824 Operating Activities 23 (4,146) (4,146)
{1,417) {1,417) | Investing Activities 24 4539 4,539
374 374 | Financing Activities 25 {677) {677)
Net Increase or decrease
{219) {219) | In cash and cash 18 (284) {284)
equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents
2,209 2,209 | atthe beginning of the 18 2,428 2,428
reporting period
Cash and cash
2428 2,428 | saquivalents at the end of 18 2,712 2,712
the reporting period
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Police Pension Fund

Group Statement of Accounts 2018/19

Group Commissioner Fund Account Group Commlulomr—|
201718 201718 201819 2018H19
£'000 E£'000 E'DOD £'000
Contributions recelvable:
(10,462) 0 | « Employer contributions {10,520) 0
(441} 0| e Otherincome (256) 0 |
| (5,855) 0 | Officers’' contributions (5,879) 0
(18,758) 0 (18,855) 0
(48) 0 | Transfers In from other pension {393) 0
funds
| Benefits payable:
24,823 0|« Pensions 26,483 0
10,053 0| e Commutations and lump sum 9,443 0
retirament benefits |
34,830 0 35,533 0
Payments to and on account of |
leavers:
0 0 ¢ Transfers out to other 39 0
pension funds
& 0 » Refunds of 12 0
contributions |
500 0 e Scheme Pays tax 118 0
payments
505 0 170 0
18,577 (18,577) | Net amount payable for tha year _ 19,048 {19,048)
(18,577) 18,577 | Additienal contribution from the (19,048) 19,048
Police Fund (re Homa Office
Grant)
0 0 0 0
Group Commissloner Net Assets Statement Group Commissioner
2017M8 2017118 2018/19 2018/19
£'000 £'000 £000 £'000
Current Assets
Debtor — net balances owed from
¢ 0| the Police fund 204 0
0 0 208 0
Current Liabllitles
Creditors = benefits payable to
0 0 | retiring officers end of March paid (908) 0
April
0 0 (908) 0
0 0 0 0




POLICE & CRIME COMMISSIONER FOR DYFED POWYS

Notes to the Accounts

1. Accounting policles

General Principles

The Statement of Accounts summarises the Group’s transactions for the 2018/19
financial year and its position at the year-end of 31st March 2019. The Commissioner is
required to prepare an annual Statement of Accounts for himself and the Group by the
Accounts and Audit (Wales) Regulations 2014 (as amended), which require them to be
prepared in accordance with proper accounting practices. These practices primarily
comprise the Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom
2018/19 and the Service Reporting Code of Practice .2018/19, supported by
Intsrational Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS).

The accounting convention adopted in the Statement of Accounts i principally historical
cost, modified by the revaluation of certain categories of non-current assets and
financlal instruments.

Prior Period Adjustments, Changes in Accounting Policles and Estimates and
Errors

Prior period adjustments may arise as a result of a change in accounting policies or to
correct a material error. Changes in accounting estimates are accounted for
prospectively, i.e. in the current and future years affected by the change and do not give
rise to a prior period adjustment.

Changes in accounting policies are only made when required by proper accounting
practices or the change provides more reliable or relevant information about the effect
of transactions, other events and conditions on the financial position or financial
performance of the Group. Where a change is made, it is applied retrospectively
(unless stated otherwise) by adjusting opening balances and comparative amounts for
the prior period as if the new policy had aiways been applied.

Material errors discovered in prior period figures are corrected retrospectively by
amending opening balances and comparative amounts for the prior period.

Accruais of Income and Expenditure

Activity is accounted for in the year that it takes place, not simply when cash payments

are made or received. In particular:
Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised when the Group transfers the
significant risks and rewards of ownership to the purchaser and it is probable that
economic benefits or service potential associated with the transaction will flow to the
Group.
Revenue from the provision of services is recognised when the Group can measure
reliably the percentage of completion of the transaction and it is probable that
economic benefits or service potential associated with the transaction will flow to the
Group.
Supplies are recorded as expenditure when they are consumed — where there is a
gap between the date supplies are received and their consumption they are carried as
inventories on the Balance Sheet.
Expenses in relation to services received (including services provided by employees)
are recorded as expenditure when the services are received rather than when
payments are made.
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Group Statement of Accounts 2018/19

Interest receivable on investments and payable on borrowings is accounted for
respectively as income and expenditure on the basis of the effective interest rate for
the relevant financial instrument rather than the cash flows fixed or determined by the
contract.

Where revenue and expenditure have been recognised but cash has not been
received or paid, a debtor or creditor for the relevant amount is recorded in the
Balance Sheet. Where debts may not be settled, the balance of debtors is written
down and a charge made to revenue for the income that might not be collected.

Overheads and Support Services

The costs of overheads and support services are charged to service segments In
accordance with the Group’s arrangements for accountability and financial
performance.

Exceptional ltems

When items of income and expense are material, their nature and amount is disclosed
separately, either on the face of the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure
Statement (CIES) or in the notes to the accounts, depending on how significant the
items are to an understanding of the financial performance of the Group.

Events after the Balance Sheet date

Events after the Balance Sheet date are those events, both favourable and
unfavourable, that occur between the end of the reporting period and the date when the
Statement of Accounts is authorised for issue. Two types of events can be identified:

Those that provide evidence of conditions that existed at the end of the reporting
period — the Statement of Accounts is adjusted to reflect such events.

Those that are indicative of conditions that arose after the reporting period — the
Statement of Accounts is not adjusted to reflect such events, but where a category
of events would have a material effect, disclosure is made in the notes of the nature
of the events and their estimated financial effect.

Events taking place after the date of authorisation for issue are not reflected in the
Statement of Accounts.

Property, plant and equipment

Expenditure on the acquisition, creation or enhancement of property, plant and
equipment is capitalised on an accruals basis. Expenditure that maintains but does not
add to an asset's potential to deliver future economic benefits or service potential (i.e.
repairs and maintenance) is charged as an expense when it incurred.

Expenditure falling below a de-minimis level of £6,000 per item is treated as Revenue
and charged when it is incurred.

Assets are Initially measured at cost and are then carried in the Balance Sheet using
the following measurement bases:
Assets under construction — depreciated historical cost;

Operational Buildings — depreciated replacement cost;
Surplus assets / Assets Held For Sale — Fair value — reviewed annually;
Investment Properties — fair value (or reviewed annually or every five years);

All other assets — fair value (revalued every five years), determined as the amount
that would be paid for the asset in its existing use.
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Increases in valuations are matched by credits to the Revaluation Reserve to recognise
unrealised gains. The Revaluation Reserve contains revaluation gains recognised since
1st April 2007 only, the date of its formal implementation. Gains arising before that date

have been consolidated into the Capital Adjustment Account.

Assets are assessed at each year-end as to whether there is any indication that an
asset may be impaired. Where indications exist and any possible differences are
estimated to be material, the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated and, where
this Is less than the carrying amount of the asset, an impairment loss is recognised for
the shortfall.

Where impairment losses are identified, they are accounted for as foliows:

Where there is a balance of revaluation gains for the asset in the Revaluation
Reserve, the carrying amount of the asset is written down against that balance (up
to the amount of the accumulated gains).

Where there is no balance in the Revaluation Reserve or an insufficient balance, the
carrying amount of the asset is written down against the relevant service lines in the

CIES.

Depreciation
Depreciation is provided for on all Property, Plant and Equipment assets by the

systematic allocation of their depreciable amounts over their useful lives. The useful

economic lives of assets and their residual values are summarised in the table below:

Asset Category ] Useful Economic Life Residual Value
PROPERTY |
Land No Depreclation No Depreciaticn .
| Operational Buildings | Over Remalning Life Over Remaining Life
Investment Propertles No Depreciation No Depreclation
| Surplus Assets Over Remalning Life Over remaining Life
Assets Held for Sale No Depreciation No Depreclation
' VEHICLES & BOATS B i
Boatt: |
e Hul 32 years Nil -
e Enaglne 12 years NIl -
Boat 2; | 10 years | NIl
| Vehicles _ |
o Rapid Response/Other | 3 years | Ni
s Other ‘ 5 years NIl
EQUIPMENT —
Computer fother =ouinment _ | byears | NIl
| INTANGIBLE ASSETS 3/5 yrars L NIl

Where an item of Property, Plant and Equipment has major components whose cost is
significant in relation to the total cost of the item, the components are depreciated

separately.
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The Group has applied the following de-minimis limits, below which, the component is
not separately quantified:

Life of
component

(years) |
De-minimis J 50 100 200 300 780 1,000

__ (£'000)

Revaluation gains are also depreciated, with an amount equal to the difference between
current value depreciation charged on assets and the depreciation that would have
been chargeable based on their historical cost being transferred each year from the
Revaluation Reserve to the Capital Adjustment Account.

Surplus Assets

Surplus assets are those that are not being actively used in the business (such as
vacant properties) and that cannot be classed as “assets held for sale”, Surplus assets
will be measured at fair value at each reporting date, based on the amount at which the
asset could be exchanged between knowledgeable parties at arm’s-length. Gains and
losses on revaluation are posted to the Financing and Investment Income and
Expenditure line in the CIES. The same treatment is applied to gains and losses on
disposal.

Disposals and Non-current Assets Held for Sale

When it becomes probable that the carrying amount of an asset will be recovered
principally through a sale transaction rather than through its continuing use, it is
reclassified as an Asset Held for Sale. The asset is revalued immediately before
reclassification and then carried at the lower of this amount and fair value less costs to
sell. Where there is a subsequent decrease to fair value less costs to sell, the loss is
posted to the Other Operating Expenditure line in the CIES.

Gains in fair value are recognised only up to the amount of any previous losses
recognised in the Surplus or Deficit on Provision of Services. Depreciation is not
charged on Assets Held for Sale.

0- ] 10- 15- 20- 30- Over
10 15 20 30 40 40

Amounts received for a disposal In excess of £10,000 are categorised as capital
receipts. The balance of receipts Is required to be credited to the Capital Receipts
reserve, and can only be used for new capital investment (or set aside to reduce the
Group's underlying need to borrow — the capital financing requirement).

Charges to Revenue for Non-Current Assets

Services, support services and trading accounts are debited with the following amounts
to record the cost of holding non-current assets during the year:

Depreciation attributable to the assets used by the relevant service.

Revaluation and impairment losses on assets used by the service where there are no
accumulated gains in the Revaluation Reserve against which the losses can be written
off.

Investment property

Investment properties are those that are used solely to earn rentals and/or for capital
appreciation. Investment properties are measured initially at cost and subsequently at
fair value, based on the amount at which the asset could be exchanged between
knowledgeable parties at arm's-length. Gains and losses on revaluation are posted to
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the Financing and Investment Income and Expenditu_re line in the CIES. The same
treatment is applied to gains and losses on disposal.

Intangible assets

Expenditure on non-monetary assets that do not have physical substance but are
controlled by the Group as a result of past events (e.g. software licences) is capitalised
when it is expected that future economic benefits or service potential will flow from the
intangible asset to the Group.

Intangible assets are measured initially at cost. Amounts are only revalued where the
fair value of the assets held by the Group can be detsrmined by reference to an active
market. In practice, no intangible asset held by the Group meets this criterion, and they
are therefore carried at amortised cost.

Amortisation of intangible fixed assets attributable to the service

The Group is not required to raise council tax to fund depreciation, revaluation and
impairment losses or amortisations. However, it is required to make an annual
contribution from revenue towards the reduction in his overall borrowing requirement.
Depreciation, revaluation and impairment losses and amortisation are therefore
replaced by the contribution in the General Fund Balance by way of an adjusting
transaction with the Capital Adjustment Account in the Movement in Reserves
Statement for the difference between the two.

Financial Instruments

Financial Liabilities

These are initially measured at fair value and are carried at their amortised cost. Annual
charges to the Income and Expenditure Statement for interest payable are based on the
carrying amount of the liability, multiplied by the effective rate of interest for the
Instrument. The amount presented in the Balance Sheet is the outstanding principal

plus accrued interest.

Financial Asgets

Loans and Receivables ars initially measured at fair value and carried at their amortised
cost. Annual credits to the Income and Expenditure Statement for interest receivable
are based on the carrying amount of the asset multiplied by the effective rate of interest
for the instrument. For most of the loans that the Group has made, this means that the
amount presented in the Balance Sheet is the outstanding principal receivable plus
accrued interest.

Foreign currency translation

Where the Group has entered into a transaction denominated in a foreign currency, the
transaction is converted into sterling at the exchange rate applicable on the date the
transaction was effective.

Inventories

Inventories are included in the balance sheet at current cost price. International
Accounting Standard (IAS) 2 states that Inventories should be measured at the lower of
cost and net realisable value. The policy does not therefore comply with IAS 2 but the
difference is not material.

Cash and Cash Equlvalents
Cash is represented by cash in hand and deposits with financial institutions repayable
without penalty on notice of not more than 24 hours.
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Cash equivalents are short term, highly liquid investments held at the balance sheet
date that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash on the balance sheet date
and which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.

Provisions

Provisions are made where an event has taken place that gives the Group a legal or
constructive obligation that probably requires settlement by a transfer of economic
benefits or service potential, and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the
obligation.

Reserves

Amounts set aside for purposes falling outside the definition of provisions are
considered as reserves. Revenue reserves are available to finance expenditure.
Certain capital reserves created as a result of the capital accounting scheme are not
available to meet current expenditure and include:

Revaluation Reserve which records the accumulated gains on the fixed assets held
by the Group arising from increases in value, to the extent that these gains have not
been consumed by subsequent downward movements in value;

Capital Adjustment Account, which provides a balancing mechanism between the

different rates at which assets are depreciated and are financed through the capital

controls system, by accumulating:

o On the debit side — the write-down of the historical cost of fixed assets as they are
consumed by depreciation and impairments or written off on disposal;

o On the credit side — the resources that have been set aside to finance capital
expenditure.

Collaborative Arrangements

CIPFA issued new guidance on "Accounting for Collaboration® applicable for the
2014/15 financlal year onwards. This required the Commissioner and Force to assess
all collaborative activity and categorise these into either joint operations or joint
ventures and account for their fair share of expenditure, income, assets and liabilities in
their individual accounts. Further details can be found under the Collaborative
Arrangements note.

Employee benefits

Benefits Payable During Employment

Short-term employee benefits are those due to be settied within 12 months of the year-
end. They include such benefits as wages and salaries, paid annual leave and paid sick
leave, bonuses and non-monetary benefits (e.g. cars) for current employees and are
recognised as an expense for services in the year in which the employees render
service. An accrual is made for the cost of holiday entitiements (including time off in lieu
and flexi leave) earned by employees but not taken before the year-end, which
employees can carry forward into the next financial year. The accrual is made at salary
rates applicable in the following accounting year, being the period in which the
employee takes the benefit. The accrual is charged to Surplus or Deficit on the
Provision of Services, but then reversed out through the Movement in Reserves
Statement so that holiday benefits are charged to revenue in the financial year in which
the holiday absence occurs.

Terminati enefits

Termination benefits are amounts payable as a result of a decision by the
Commissioner and Chief Constable to terminate an officer's employment before the
normal retirement date or an officer's decision to accept voluntary redundancy.
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Where termination benefits involve the enhancement of pensions, statutory provisions
require the General Fund balance to be charged with the amount payable by the Group
to the pension fund or pensioner in the year, not the amount calculated according to the
relevant accounting standards. In the Movement in Reserves Statement, appropriations
are required to and from the Pensions Reserve to remove the notional debits and
credits for pension enhancement termination benefits and replace them with debits for
the cash paid to the pension fund and pensioners and any such amounts payable but
unpaid at the year-end.

Post- oyment Benefi
Police officers and police staff have the option of belonging to one of two separate
pension schemes relevant to them:

Police Officers Pension Scheme, administered through a Police Pension Fund

Local Government Pensions Scheme, administered by Carmarthenshire County

Council.
Both schemes provide defined benefits to members (retirement lump sums and
pensions), eamned as employees worked for the Group.
This Police Officer Pension scheme is "unfunded® which means that no investment
assets are built up to pay pensions and other benefits in the future, and therefore no
provision to meet the liability for future payments of benefits is included in the balance
sheet. The liabilities of the Local Government Scheme that are attributable to the Group
are included in the Balance Sheet on an actuarial basis using the projected unit method
- |.e. an assessment of the future payments that will be made in relation to retirement
benefits earned to date by employees, based on assumptions about mortality rates,
employee tumover rates etc. and projections of earnings for current employees.

Discretionary Benefits

The Commissioner and Chief Constable also have restricted powers to make
discretionary awards of retirement benefits in the event of early retirements. Any
liabilities estimated to arise as a result of an award to any member of staff are accrued
in the year of the decision to make the award and accounted for using the same policies
as are applied to the Local Government Pension Scheme.

Government grants and contributions

Whether paid on account, by instalments or in arrears, government grants and third
party contributions and donations are recognised as due to the Group when there is
reasonable assurance that:

The Group will comply with the conditions attached to the payments; and
The grants or contributions will be received.

Monies advanced as grants and contributions for which conditions have not been
satisfied are carried in the Balance Sheet as creditors. When conditions are satisfied,
the grant or contribution is credited to the relevant service (attributable revenue grants
and contributions) or Taxation and Non-Specific Grant Income (non-ring fenced
revenue grants and all capital grants) in the CIES.

Where capital grants are credited to the CIES, they are reversed out of the General
Fund Balance in the Movement in Reserves Statement. Where the grant has yet to be
used to finance capital expenditure, it is posted to the Capital Grants Unapplied
reserve. Where it has been applied, it is posted to the Capital Adjustment Account.
Amounts in the Capital Grants Unapplied reserve are transferred to the Capital
Adjustment Account once they have been applied to fund capital expenditure.
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Leases
The rentals payable/receivable are charged to the CIES on an accruals basis.

Value Added Tax (VAT)

VAT payable is included as an expense only to the extent that it is not recoverable from
Her Majesty’s Revenue and Customs by the Group. VAT receivable is excluded from
income.

. Previous period adjustments
ensive Income an enditu ment 2017
The following amendments have been made to the Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure Statement for 2017/18. These changes are in respect of Custodial

Services and Integrated Offender Management Expenditure which had been
categorised incorrectly:

AMENDMENTS:
2017118 Custodlal 'm;‘:f 201718
(Previous) Services Management (Restated)
£000 £000 ge £'000
£000
Budgets Managed by the
Assistant Chief Constable
64,864 | Local Policing 4,970 (1,078) 68,756
30,167 | Investigations (4.870) 1,078 26,205
95,051 0 0 95,051

. Accounting standards that have been Issued but have not yet been adopted

The Code requires the Police and Crime Commissioner to disclose information relating
to the impact of an accounting change that will be required by a new accounting
standard that has been issued but not yet adopted by the Code. The following changes
will be required from 1 April 2019:

e amendments to IAS40 Investment Property: Transfers of Investment Property;
o Annual Improvements to IFRS Standards 2014-2016 Cycle;

o |FRIC 22 Foreign Currency Transactions and Advance Consideration;

o IFRIC 23 Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments;

¢ amendments to IFRS 9 Financial Instruments: Prepayment Features with Negative
Compensation

The impact of the above changes on the Financial Statements is not known, however,
in the Financial Statements for 2018/20, the effect of the changes will be assessed and
if necessary, the comparative figures restated.

. Critical judgements in applying accounting policies

In applying the accounting policies set out in Note 1, the Commissloner has had to
make certain judgements about complex transactions or those involving uncertainty
about future events.
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There is a high degree of uncertainty about future levels of funding for the Police and
Crime Commissioner for Dyfed Powys. However, the Commissioner has determined
that this uncertainty is not yet sufficient to provide an indication that the assets might be
impaired as a result of a need to close facilities and reduce levels of service provision.

. Assumptions made about future and other major sources of estimation
uncertainty

The Statement of Accounts contains estimated figures that are based on assumptions
made by the Commissioner about the future or that are otherwise uncertain. Estimates
are made taking into account historical experience, current trends and other relevant
factors. However, because balances cannot be determined with certainty, actual
results could be materially different from the assumptions and estimates.

The item in the Balance Sheet at 31st March 2019 for which there is a significant risk of
material adjustment in the forthcoming financial year are as follows:

Itermn Uncertaintles Effect i actual results differ from
assumptions

—— - - D . T —— e e

Pensions Estimation of the net liability to pay | The effects on the net pensions
liability pensions depends on a number of liability of changes in individual
complex judgements relating to the assumptions can be measured.
discount rate used, the rate at which For instance, an increase of
salaries are projected to increase, 0.1% in pay award for the
changes in retirement ages, mortality A police officer pension scheme
rates and expected retums on pension | would result in an increase to
fund assets. A fim of consulting | the pension liability of £1.250
actuaries is engaged to provide expert ' million.
advice about the assumptions fo be
applied.

6. Events after the Reporting Period

The Draft Statement of Accounts was authorised for issue by the Chief Financial Officer
on 30""May 2019.

On 27 June the Supreme Court refused leave fo appeal on the Police Pension Legal
Challenge (McCloud). As a result, it is envisaged that there will be an increase in Police
Penslon Scheme liabilities. The increase is reflected in the I1AS19 Disclosure as a Past
Service Cost and a similar adjustment has been made to Past Service costs in respect
of the Local Government Pension Scheme. Please refer to Note 35 for further detail.

7. Note to the Expenditure and Funding Analysis

The following note presents further detail in support of the Expenditure and Funding
Analysis and provides a reconciliation of the main adjustments to Net Expenditure
Chargeable to the General Fund to arrive at the amounts in the Comprehensive Income
and Expenditure Statement. The relevant transfers between reserves are explained in
the Movement in Reserves Statement.
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201819

ADJUSTMENTS FROM GENERAL | Adjustments for | Net change for Other Total
FUND TO ARRIVE AT THE Capital the Pensions Differences | Adjustments
COMPREHENSIVE INCOME AND Purposes Adjustments (Column C)
EXPENDITURE STATEMENT {Column A) {Column B)
AMOUNTS

£'000 | £'000 £'000 £'000
POLICE AND CRIME [
COMMISSIONER
Commissloning and Office Costs 0 92 0 a2
Estates 0 83 o7 390
TOTAL POLICE & CRIME
COMMISSIONERS OFFICE 0 175 307 482

HI TABLE

Budgets Managed Corporately by
the Chief Constable
Chief Canstable's Office 51 186 0 237
Centrally Ma te
ygemy anaged Corpora (3.185) 9| (245) (3.334)
Extemally Funded
National/Regional/Local Services 0 0 268 266
Staff Asscciations 10 | 42 0] 52
Chief Constable B
Paople’s Services 100 as7 o | 457
Legal, Information, Efficiency,
Health & Safety 114 320 0 434
Retirements, Major Operations and
Communications s 38 0 68
Professional Standards 42 174 _[ 0 216
Budgets Mananed bv the
Assistant Chief Constable
Local Policing 2018 10,356 0 13,274
Investigations 802 3,840 34 4,676
Sclentific Support 66 142 0 208
Criminal Justice 39 240 0 279
Budgets Managed by the Director
gifinapce
Information Systems and
Technology 160 249 | 0 309
Business Support Unit 80 274 0 354
Fleet Costs 30 57 0 87
Finance and Procurement B 20 | 61| 0 81
TOTAL CHIEF CONSTABLE 1,267 85,163 55| 96,485
NET COST OF SERVICES 1,267 | 95,338 362 96,967
Other Income and Expenditure {423) 12,431 (368) 11,640
32::LUS OR DEFICIT FOR THE 844 107,769 (6) 108,607
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201718
ADJUSTMENTS FROM GENERAL FUND TO Adjustments | Net change Other Total
ARRIVE AT THE COMPREHENSIVE INCOME for Capital for the Differences | Adjustmeants
AND EXPENDITURE STATEMENT AMOUNTS Purposes Penslons | {Column C)
{Column A) | Adjustments
{Column B)

£'000 £'000 £000 £'000
POLICE AND CRIME COMMISSIONER
Commissioning and Office Costs 0 105 0 105
Estates o 20 483 573
TOTAL POLICE & CRIME COMMISSIONERS
OFFICE 0 1495 483 678
CHIEF GONSTABLE
B ] i
Chief Constable's Office 48 248 0 206
Centrally Managed Corporate Budgets (4,023) £o4 109 (2,920}
Externally Funded National/Reglonal/Local
Services (16) 0 0 (16)
Staff Assoclations 9 56 0 65
Budgets Managed by the Deputy Chief
Constable
People’s Services 91 408 0 499
Legal, Information, Efficlency, Health & Safety 1156 444 0 558
Retirements, Major Operations and
Communications 2 56 0 84
Professional Standards 48 269 0 315
B d by the |
Local Pollcing 2,632 12,641 0 15,273
Investigations 803 5,489 0 6,392
Scientlfic Support 51 124 0 176
Criminal Justice 39 256 0 295
Budgets Managed by the Director of Finance
Information Systems and Technology 140 261 0 401
Business Support Unit 69 293 0 362
Fleet Costs 29 58 0 87
Finance and Procurement 21 62 0 83
Non-distributed costs Y 0 o 0
w
- Abnormal Loads — Windfarms 0 0 0 0
- Operation Heath 0 0 0 0
TOTAL CHIEF CONSTABLE 183 21,658 109 21,950
NET COST OF SERVICES 183 21,853 592 22,628
Other income and Expenditure (191} 15,140 (348) 14,803
SURPLUS OR DEFICIT FOR THE YEAR (8) 36,993 246 ar.231
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Column A - Adjustments for Capital Purposes

For Services — adds in depreciation, impairment and revaluation gains and losses.
Statutory charges for capital financing i.e. Minimum Revenue Provision and other
revenue contributions are deducted from services as these are not chargeable under
generally accepted accounting practices. Capital grants are adjusted for income not
chargeable under generally accepted accounting practices.

For Other operating expenditure — adjusts for capital disposais with a transfer of income
on disposal of assets and the amounts written off for those assets.

n B - Net Chan r the Pansi ustm

Net change for the removal of pension contributions and the additon of 1AS19
Employee Benefits pension related expenditure and income:

For Services — this represents the removal of the employer pension contributions made
by the Group as allowed by statute and the replacement with current service costs and
past service costs.

For Financing and investment income and expenditure — the net interest on the defined
benefit liability is charged to the CIES.

For Other Operating income and expenditure — the Home Office Pensions ‘Top Up *
Grant is credited to the CIES.

Column C — Other Differences

Other differences between amounts debited/credited to the Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure Statement and amounts payable/receivable to be recognised under
statute:

For Services — adjusted by the amount by which officer remuneration charged to the
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement on an accruals basls is different
from remuneration chargeable in the year in accordance with statutory requirements.

For Financing and investment income and expenditure — adjusted by the amount by

which finance costs charged to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement
in relation to Financial Instruments differ from finance costs chargeable in the year in
accordance with statutory requirements.

A number of presentational adjustments have also been made between Services and
Other Income and Expenditure (i.e. above and below the line). Overall, these
adjustments have a nil effect.
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8. Segmental Income

This note provides a segmental analysis of significant revenues received from external
customers:

| 201718 2018/19
Income from Income from

Services Services
£000 £'000
Commissloning and Office Costs (176) (349)
Estates (800) (681)
Centrally Managed Corporate Budgets @12) | (373)
Peapie’s Services (32) 0
Legal, Information, Efficiency, Health & Safety (219) (194)
g::lr;'mu:irmgspr Operations and (816) (141)
Local Policing 0 (103)_
' Criminal Justice ' (258) 0
Business Support Unit (343) {235)
Fleet Costs (146) (213)
e e b (.02 (209

9. Adjustments between Accounting Basis and Funding Basis under
Regulations

This note details the adjustments that are made to the total comprehensive income and
expenditure recognised by the Group/Commissioner in the year in accordance with
proper accounting practice to the resources that are specified by statutory provisions as
being available to the Commissioner to meet future capital and revenue expenditure.
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2018/19 General Capltal Capltal Movament
Fund Grants Recefpts | In Unusable
Balance Unappiied | Reserve Reserves
£'000 £000 £'000 £'000
Adjustments primarily Involving the Capital Adjustment
Account
Reversal of tems deblied or credited to the CIES:
S::ertgses for depraciation and impairmaent of non-current (4.289) 0 0 4.289
Revaluation losses on property, plant and equipment 45 0 0 (45)
Amortisation of Intanglble assets - (83) 0 0 83
Capltal grants and contributions appllied 323 0 0 (323)
Movement in the Donated st_ets Account 0 0 0 0
Amounts of non-current assets written off on disposal or 538 0 0 538
sale as part of the galn/loss on disposal to the CIES (538)
Insertion of tams not deblfed or credlied to the CIES:
Capital expandﬂurearged agalnst the General Fund 3,104 0 0 (3.104)
Ad]ustments primarily Involving the Caplital grants
unapplied account
Capltal grants and contributions unapplied credited to CIES 0 0 0 0
Application of grants to capital financing transferred to the
| Capital Adjustment Account 0 823 0 (323)
Adjustments primarily Involving the Capltal recelpts
reserve
Transfer of cash sale proceeds credited as part of the 23) 0 0 23
gainlloag on disposal to the CIES
Use of Capital receipts reserve to finance new capltal
expenditure 616 0 0 {616)
Adjustments nvolving the Financial Instruments
| Adjustment Account
Amount by which finance costs charged to the CIES are
different from finance costs chargeabls in the year In 0 0 0 0
accordance with Wry requirements
Adjustments primarily Involving the Penslons reserve
Reversal of items relating to retirement benefits deblted or
credited o the CIES 19,048 0 0| SUEES)
Employer's pensions contributions and direct payments to
pensioners payable in the year (126,817) 0 0 126,817
Adjustments primarlly Involving the Accumulated
balances account
Amount by which offlcer remuneretion charged to the CIES
on an accruals basis is different from remuneration 306 0 0 (308)
chargeable in the year In accordance with statutory
requirements B
Adjustments in respect of falr share of Collaborative
Arrangements (299) 0 0 29
Total adjustments {108,607) 323 a 108,284
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2017/18 General Capital | Capital | Movement
Fund Grants Recelpts | In Unusable
Balance Unappiled | Reserve Reserves
£'000 £'000 £'000 £000
Adjustments primarily involving the Capital Adjustment
Account
Reversal of Items deblted or credited to tha CIES:
gsl':saartgsas for depreciation and impaiment of non-current (4,233) 0 0 4233
Revaluation losses on property, plant and equipment 200 0 0 (200)
Amortisation of intangible assets (83) 0 0 83
Capital grants and contributions applied 318 0 0 (318)
Movement In the Donated Assets Account 0 0 0 0
Amounts of non-current assets written off on disposal or 364 0 0 164
sale as part of the gain/loss on disposal to the CIES (364)
Insertion of items not deblted or credited to the CIES:
Capital expendlture charged agalnst the General Fund 3,930 0 0 (3,930)
AdJustments primarily Invoiving the Capltal grants
unapplled account
Capital grants and contributions unapplied credited to CIES 0 0 o 0
Application of grants to capltal financing transferred to the 0 129 0 (129)
Capltal Adjustment Account
Adjustments primarily Involving the Capltal recelpts
reserve
Transfer of cash sale proceeds credlited as part of the
galnfioss on disposal to the CIES 239 0] (308) e
:J::ezz tl'.t'::rpeltal recelpts reserve to finance new capital 0 0 305 (3059
AdJustments Involving the Flnanclal Instruments
Adjustment Account
Amount by which finance costs charged to the CIES are
different from finance costs chargeable in the year in (88) 0 0 88
accordance with statutory requirements
Adjustments primarily Involving the Penslons reserve
Er:vd?tres:m :It:rgTErglatlng to retirement beneflts deblted or 18,577 0 0 (18,577)
Employer's pensions contributions and direct payments to
pensioners payable in the year (65.570) 0 | 0 55,570
Adjustments primarily involving the Accumulated
balances account
Amount by which officer remuneration charged 1o the CIES
©on an accruals besls Is different from remuneration (157) 0 0 157
chargeable in the year in accordance with statutory
requirements
Adjustments In respect of falr share of Collaborative 0 0 0 0
Arrangements
Total adjustments (37,231) 129 {1) 37,103
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10. Transfers to/from Earmarked Reserves

This note sets out the amounts set aside from the General Fund balance in earmarked
reserves to provide financing for future expenditure plans and the amounts posted back from
earmarked reserves to meet General Fund expenditure in 2018/19,

— 8 ] |
E b § - k]
E - E -
-%.._ pe g © : 2 E g & | pe E 2| 58
Reserve s | 85 | §5| g% | £ (3% [g3 | fs
AN AR R L AR N
LA EE AT B R
£'000 | £'000 | £'000 £'000 | E'000 £0600 | £'000 | £°000 £'000
Earmarked Revenue
o (4,869) (7) | 3.074 | (1,802) | (1,693) | (3.495) 02159 | (1,336)
Driver Retralnl
oy ng (1,081) {176) 10 | (1,247) 245 | (1,002) (354) 62 | (1,204)
zc“t’m"s of Crime 168)| (62| 94| (128)| (115)| (241)| (18| 30| (218)
Chief Constable i
FOperational Fund 0 | 0 0 . 0 o (385} . 0 (385)
Sustalnability and
Traneformaton Fund of o o o o 0 «s| o (o4
Drug Intervention (170) 0 0 (170) | 0 {170) 0 35 (135)
Regicnal
Coliaboration (94) | (363) 35 (422) (43) (465) | (127y| 203| (389)
Reserve |
'‘Go Safe' Road
Sefety Partnership (799) | (680) (1,479) 0| (1480) | (241) 0| (1,721)
Reserve
Capltel Reserves (1§.552) 4,350 | (11,202) 1,568 | (9,633) (318) | 3,739 | (6,212) |
General Reserve {4,500} - 468 | (4,032) 0| (4,032) 0 0| (4,032)
Total Reserves (27,233) | (1,278) | 8,031 | (20,480) (38) | (20,518) | (1,935) | 6,237 | (18,216)

£38k has been reclassified as Unusable Reserves. This ls mainly In relation fo the restatement of collaborative costs
that reflects the difference betwaen the fair value of collaboration costs and actual expenditure Incurred in accordance
with accounting standards.

The Earmarked or Usable Reserves held by the Group are detailed below with an explanatory
note regarding their use:

Eamarked Revenue Reserve

This reserve is being held to support the revenue budget over the next 3 years to mitigate
future funding gaps.

Driver Retrainin heme
To support activities in relation to road safety initiatives.
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Proceeds of Crime Act

Funds awarded to the Group as a result of confiscation orders arising from proceeds of
crime. The reserves are utilised to support operational activities which assist in bringing
criminals to justice.

Chief Constable Operational Fund

This is a new reserve which has been established to assist in mitigating against the
consequential costs of notable peaks in operational activity.

inability and Transformati nd

A new reserve established to assist in funding ‘invest to save’, sustainability and
transformational activities.

Drug Intervention
This reserve will be utilised to support drug testing.
Regional Coll ion Reserve

This reserve represents the Group's share of funds held for collaborative police services
which include the Regional Organised Crime Unit and Regional Task Force. The funds
will be utilised in line with business requirements to support operational delivery.

‘Go Safe' R artnership R

This earmarked reserve is held on behalf of the all Wales ‘Go Safe' Road Safety
Partnership and will be utilised in line with their business requirements.

Capital Reserves

This reserve will be used to support the significant capital invesiment in Estates,
Information Technology and Fleet, including a new custody and statlon facility within
Carmarthenshire.

General Reserve
The Commissioner maintains a General Reserve of £4.03m to act as:

¢ a working balance to help cushion the impact of uneven cash flows and avoid
unnecessary temporary borrowing;

e a contingency to cushion the impact of unexpected events or emergencies.

11.0ther operating Income and expenditure

This line contains corporate items of income and expenditure that cannot reasonably be
allocated or apportioned to services.

Group Commissioner Group Commissloner
2017H18 201718 201819 201819
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
126 126 | (Gain)Loss on the disposal of non-current {124) (124)
assets
(18,577) (18,577) Homte Office Police Cfficers Pensions top-up (19,048) {19,048)
gran
{18,451) (18,451) Total {19,172) {19,172}
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12. Flnanclna and invest;ent_lncome and expenditure

This line contains corporate items of income and expenditure arising from
involvement in financial instruments and similar transactions involving interest.

Group Statemenit of Accounts 2018/19

Group | Commissioner Note Group Commissloner
2017118 2017/18 2018119 2018/19
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
208 208 | Interest payable and simllar charges 16 173 173
Net interest on the net defined
33,716 42 benefit llability 35 31,481 a7
Other Investment Expsenditure =
0 0 | Helicopter Deferred Capital Recelpt | 22 2 22
Interest receivabla and similar
(159) (169) income 16 {235) {235)
Income and expendture In relation
{483) (483) | to investment properties and 15 (307) (307)
changes In their falr value
Loss on revalugtion (available for
88 8 sale financlal instruments) 16 0 0
33,370 (304) | Total 31,154 {310)

13. Taxation and non-specific grant Incomes

This item consolidates all the grants and contributions receivable that cannot be
identified to particular service expenditure.

Group | Commissioner Note | Group | Commissioner
201718 2017118 2018M9 2018/19
£000 £'000 £'000 £'000
(47,303) (47,303) | Council tax Income (49,787) (49,787)
(8,934) (8,834} | Natlonal Non Domestic Rates (8,823) {8.823)
(NNDR)
(40,378} (40,378) | Non ring fenced government grants 30 {40,490) {40,490)
(317) {317) | Capital grants and contributions 30 {322) (322)
(986,932) (96,932) | Total (99.422) (99,422)
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14. Property, plant and equipment

Movement on balances in financial year 2018/19;

TOTAL
PROPERTY, | SURPLUS | ASSETS UNDER
Land | Bulldings | Boat | Vehicles | Equipment PLANT & ASSETS | CONSTRUCTION
EQUIPMENT

£'000 £'000 | £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
Cost or valuation at
1%t Aprll 2018 4,195 63,762 | 204 7.748 20,963 86,862 80 0
Additions 935 33 1,003 2,283 4,254 0 104
Ravaluation
Increases/{decreases)
recognised in the 0 0 0 0 0 0 L .y
Revaluation Reserve
Revaluation
increases/(decreases)
recognised in 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 o
surplus/deficlt on the
Provision of Services
ggm:“'m' 0 o| ol (1478 0 (1.475) 0 0
A, MIOVeerk in 0 ol o 0 0 0 0 0
Assefs reclassified )] (125) 0 0 0 {125) 0 o
At 31st March 2019 | 4,195 84,572 | 327 7,276 23,248 99,618 60 104
Accumulated
ﬂ::::::tl:t"a: ?9‘ 0 (1729)| (83)| (4,543)| (16,745) (23,070) (6) 0
April 2018
Depraciation charge 0 {1,254) | (21)| (1,201) (1.341) (3.817) {4) 0
Depraciation written
out to Revaluation 0 (465) 0 0 (465) (2) 0
Reserve
3,:;';;‘3;"”"" 0 o| o 1349 0 1,349 0 0
Accumulated
depraclation and
Im::alnnant at 31% 0 {3,448) | (74) | (4,395) {(18,088) (26,003) (12) 0
March 2018
gf}ta?r:h';éﬂ; a8l | g195| 61,124 | 283| 2,881 5,160 73,613 48 104
;'1'.‘1 mh";t',';; "8t | 4195| 62033 241| 3205 4218 73,802 54 0
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Movement on balances in financial year 2017/18:

Group Statement of Accounts 2018/19

TOTAL
Land | Bulldings | Boat | Vehicles | Equipment "ﬁf::ﬂ* g sAusRs?}uss g:g:gggg:
EQUIPMENT

£'000 £'000 | £°000 £'000 £'000 £°000 £'000 £'000
Cost or valuation at
1% April 2017 4,195 62,304 | 314 7,561 19,244 93,618 1,497 0
Additions 0 1,798 0| 1122 | - 1,762 4,682 0 0
Revaluation
Increases/(dscreases) ;
recognised in the o 309 0 0 0 209 0 0
Revalyation Reserve
Revaluation
increases/{dacreases)
recognised in 0 (662) 0 0 0 (662) 0
surplus/deficit on the
Provision of Services
d";;"f‘;‘f:'""“ o 0 0| @o)| (926) (43) (998) 0 0
Other movements in (
o T 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Asseis reclassified 0 13 0 0 | 0 13 {1,437) 0
At 31st March 2018 | 4,195 63,762 | 204 7.748 20,963 96,062 60 0
Accumulated
depreclation and
Impalrment at 1% 0 0| (38)| (4,235 {15,617} {19,890) 0 0
Aprll 2017
Depreclation charge 0_ (_1 281) | (22) | (1,209) (1,171) (3.663) (5) D
Depreciation written
out to Revaluation 0 (468) (1] 0 0 (468} i 0
Reserve |
Derecognition |
disposals 0 0 | 7 201 43 951 0 0
Accumulated
depreclation and
impairment at 31% 0 {1.,729) | (53) | (4,543) (16,745) {23,070) (B) 0
March 2018
Net book value - at
21% March 2018 4,195 62,033 | 241 3,205 4,218 73,892 54 0
Net book value - at
31% March 2017 4,195 62,304 | 278 3,326 3,627 73,728 1497 0
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Revaluations

The Commissioner carries out a programme that ensures assets required to be
measured at fair value are normally measured once every five years for each class of
asset. A full revaluation of Land and Bulidings was carried out by external valuers and
was effective from 31/03/17.

Valuations of some Buildings, Investment Properties and Surplus Assets were
undertaken as of the 31/03/18 due to some significant expenditure on these buildings
and change in use.

These were undertaken by an external valuer.

Valuations of vehicles, plant, fumniture and equipment are based on current prices where
there is an active second-hand market or latest list prices adjusted for the condition of
the asset.

Property Plant and Equipment Investment Properties
2
R IR
) b 5 3
T |5 ¥ | 8| & || 8|350z ¢
SRR IRAREE SR ARARIEi IR
1w i = 5 8 s o
w
£000 | £000 | £000 | £000 | £'000 | £000 | £000 | £'000 | £000 ""g £000 | £'000 |  £'000
e Sooet: | 4195 | 41,000 | 2881 | 5125 | 253 | 2,975 0| 1312 10| (40)| 104 | 1,685| 39,570
Valued at falr
value at:
311319 0| (472) 0 0 0 0 0 0 o 0 7 (486)
317318 0| (122 0 34 0 0 0| (280) 0| (78 0 0 (455)
31/an7 0| 7217 0 ®| o 4 0 20 0| 152 0 0 7,456
31/ane 0| (285) 0 0 o| 7o 0| 254 0| 15 0 0 es
31/3/15 0| (285 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 (285)
31314 0| (79 0| (4) o ez M 17 0 0 0 0 (743)
31/313 0 | 14,005 0 48 0 8 7 63 0 0 0 0| 14219
Total cost or
e 4 4,193 | 61,124 | 2,881 | 5160 253 | 2,526 0| 1388 10| 48| 104 1,672| 79,389

15.Investment properties
The following table summarises the movement in the fair value of investment properties

over the year:
2017118 2018119
£000 £'000
4,232 Bailance at start of year: 3,904
0 Additions In the year 8
(328) Net gains/losses from fair value adjustments 0
3,904 Balance at end of year 3,912

Investment Properties are measured at Fair value based on market evidence.
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Details of the Commissioner’s investment properties and information about the fair
value hierarchy as at 31 March 2019 and 31* March 2018 are as follows:-

31* March 2019

Quoted Prices In | Other significant | Significant Falr Value as at
active markets observable unobservable | 31* March 2019
for Identical Inputs {level 2) inputs (level 3)
assots (Level 1)
£'000 E'000 E£'000 E'000
Radio Mast Sltes 0 2,525 0 2,625
| Office Units 0 1,387 | 0 1,387
31" March 2018
Quoted Prices In | Other significant | Significant Fair Value as at
active markets for | observable unohservable 31* March 2018
Identical assets Inputs (level 2) Inputs (level 3)
(Level 1)
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
Radio Mast Sies 0 2,517 0 2,517
Office Units 0 1,387 0 1,387

Valuation Technigues used to determine level 2 and 3 Fair Values for Investment

Properties

Significant observable inputs — level 2.
The fair value for the Radio Mast Units and Office Units has been based on the market

approach using current market conditions, the duration of leases and rental income.

16.Financial Instruments

A financial instrument is a contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity
and a financial liability or equity instrument of another entity. Non-exchange
transactions such as those relating to taxes and government grants, do not give rise

to fimancial instruments.
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Financial Instrument — Balances

The following categories of financial instrument are carried in the Balance Sheet as at

31% March 2018 and 31* March 2019:

Group:
Long Term Current
31* March | 31® March | 31 March | 31* March
2018 2019 2018 2019
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
Borrowing (PWLB) (1,947) (1,739) (189) {207)
Creditors 0 H {9,652) (13,257)
Total Financlal Liabllities (1,947) {1,739) (9,841) {13,484)
Loans and receivabies:
Investments 6,538 6,414 16,189 17,620
Debtors 0 0 7,650 5,371
Total Financial Assets 6,538 6,414 23839 22,991
Commissioner:
Long Term Current
31" March 31" March 31* March 31" March
2018 2019 2018 2018
£000 £'000 £'000 £'000
Borrowing (PWLB) {1,947) (1,739) (188) (207)
Creditors 0 0 (2,741) {2,033)
Total Financial Liabllities (1,947) (1,739) (2,930) (3,140)
Loans and receivables:
Investments 6,538 6,414 16,189 17,620
Debtors 0 0 6,937 4,896
Total Financlal Assets 6,538 6,414 23,126 22,516

Gains and Losses

Finangial Instruments — Gaing and Losses

The gains and losses recognised in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure

Statement in relation to financial instruments consist of the following items:

Financial Financlal Assets 201819
201718 Liabliites
Liablilties Loans and Total
measured at recelvables £000s
Total £'0008 amortised cost £000s
£0009
£°000 £'000 £'000 £'000
(208) | |nterest expense (193} 0 (193)
151 | Interest Income 0| 235 235
(57) | Net gain/(loas) (193) 235 42
for the year
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Eair Values

Financlal assets classified as available for sale and all derivative assets and liabilities are
carried in the Balance Sheet at fair value. For most assets, including bonds, treasury bills
and shares in money market funds and other pooled funds, the fair value is taken from the
market price. The fair values of other instruments have been estimated calculating the net
present value of the remaining contractual cash flows at 31" March 2019, using the
following methods and assumptions:

Certificates of deposit and forward loan contracts have been discounted at market interest
rates for instruments of similar credit quality and remaining term to maturity.

The Public Works Loan Board (PWLB) has provided the Commissioner with Falr Value
amounts In relation to its debt portfolio. The PWLB has assessed the Fair Values by
calculating the amounts the Commissioner would have had to pay to extinguish the loans
on these dates.

No early repayment or impairment is recognised for any financial instrument.

The fair value of short-term instruments, including creditors and debtors, is assumed to
approximate to the carrying amount.

For creditors and debtors, the camying value has been used as reasonable
approximation of fair value.

Fair values are shown in the table on the following page, split by their level in the fair value
hisrarchy:

Level 1 —fair value is only derived from quoted prices in active markets for identical assets
or liabilities, e.g. bond prices

Level 2 — fair value is calculated from inputs other than quoted prices that are observable
for the asset or liabilitye.g. interest rates or yields for similar instruments

Level 3 — fair value is determined using uncbservable inputs, e.g. non-market data such as
cash flow forecasts or estimated creditworthiness

There were no transfers between input levels 1 and 2 during the year and there has been
no change in the valuation technique used during the year.

2018/19
Group Commissloner

[ Valuo | ‘omeuny | Fair value
31" 31" Level 3™ i LN

March March March 2018

2019 2019 2019
£'000 £'000 £'000 £000
Financial Liabiilties:
(1,739) (2,415) Long Term Bomowing 2 (1,739) (2,415)
Liabliities for which Fair Value Is not
disciosed
(207) (207) Short Term Bormowing {207) (207)
(13.257) | (13,257) Credltors (2,933} (2,833)
(15,203) | (15,879) Total Financlal Liabilities {4,879) (5,555)
Financial Assets:
6,414 6414 Long term investments 2 6414 6414
Assets for which Falr Value Is not disclosed

17,620 17,620 Short Term Investments 17,620 17,620
5,371 5,371 Debtors 4,896 4,806
29,405 29,405 Total Financlal Assets 28,930 28,930
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2017/18
Group Commissloner
2:;:{::? Fair valus "::I'; Ernn;yl::f Falr value
31% March | 31"March Love | 31% March [ 31™March
2018 2018 ) 2018 2018
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
Financial Liabilities:
(1947)|  (2.956) | Long Term Bormowing 2 (1,847) (2,956) |
Liabliities for which Fair Value Is not
disciosed
(189) (189) | Short Term Bomowing (189) (189)
(9,652) (9,652) | Credltors (2,741) (2,741)
(11,788) {12,797) | Total Financial Liabllites (4.877) (5,886)
Financial Assets: _
6,538 6,538 | Long term investments 2 6,538 6,538
Assets for which Fair Value fs not
disciosed
16,189 16,189 | Short Term Investments 16,189 16,189
7,650 | 7.650 | Debors 6,937 6,937
30,377 30,377 | Total Financlal Assets 20,664 29,664
17.Short-Term Debtors
Group Commlissloner Group Commissloner
31" March 2018 | 31% March 2018 31* March 2019 | 31* March 2019
£000 £'000 £'000 £'000
3,439 3,439 | Trade recelvables 2,001 2,001
3,498 3,498 | Other receivables 2,800 2,800
713 0 | Prepayments 480 5
7,850 6,937 | Total 5,371 4,896
18.Cash and Cash Equivalents
31" March 2018 31* March 2019
£'000 £'000
19 | Cash held 20
409 | Bank current accounts 692
2,000 —Short-term deposits a 2,000
| 2428 Total = 2,712
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19.Assets held for sale
31" March2018 |  31% March 2019
£'000 £000
Balance outstanding st start of year: 0 1,913
Assets newly classified as held for sale: 0 1;
¢  Property, plant and equipment
Assets reclassified as Surplus assets 1,424 0
Revaluation gains 801 45
| Assets sold (316) (411) |
Depreciation (96) 0
Balance outstanding at year end 1,913 1,672
20. Short-Term Creditors
Group Commissloner Group Commissioner ]
31% March 31" March 31% March 2019 31" March 2019
2018 2018
£'000 £'000 £000 £000
1,049 | 503 | Trade payables 1,446 476
7.703 2,238 | Other payables 11,813 2,459
9,652 | 2,741 | Total 13,259 2,935
21.Provisions

Short Term Provisions

These are amounts which are expected to be paid within 12 months of the reporting
period.

The Short Term Provision Balance of £768k (£665k for 2017/18), includes an amount of
£551k (£531k for 2017/18) in respect of Statutory Funds. The Commissioner is
empowered to seize monies or property used, or intended for use, for the purpose of
crime. These seized monies are held pending a ruling by the Courts. Once this ruling is
made the funds can be disposed of in line with relevant legislation.

Long Term Provisions

These are amounts which are expected to be paid more than 12 months after the
reporting period.

The Long Term Provision Balance of £952k includes an amount of £495k (£380k for
2017/18) in respect of Insurance Claims. This is an assessment of the likely settlement of
insurance claims o be made by the Commissioner.

The Commissioner has also included a Long Term Provision of £457k (£457k for
2017/18) in relation to Municipal Mutual Insurance (MMI). MMI is a former insurer of
public bodies which ceased trading In 1992. The Commissioner is in a scheme of
arrangement to meet all claims that were outstanding at the time the company went out of
business.
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3™ Reclassifications | Revised 31" March
March Balance 2019
2018 at31™
March
2018
£'000 £'000
{20,254) 0 (20,254) | Revalustion reserve (19,788)
(69,603) 0 {59,603) | Capital adjustment account (59,572)
525 0 525 | Accumulated absences account 220
1,182,188 0| 1,182,188 | Penslons reserve 1,371,157
(23) 0 {23) | Deferred Capltal Recelpt 0
4 (4) 0| Available for Sale Financial Instruments Reserve 0
0 42 42 | Collaboration Fair Share Reserve 342
1,102,837 38| 1,102,875 | Total 1,292,359
Revaluation reserve

The Reserve contains only revaluation gains accumulated since 1 April 2007, the date
that the Reserve was created. Accumulated gains arising before that date are
consolidated into the balance on the Capital Adjustment Account.

201718 2018119
£000 £'000
{20,709) | Balance at 1* Aprll: {20,254)
(623) | Upward revaluation of assets 0
603 | Downward revaluation of assets and impalment losses not charged to the o
Surplus/Deficlt on Provision of Services
{20,729} | Surplus or deficlt on revaluation of non-current assets not posted to the (20,254)
surplus or deficit on the Provision of Services
476 | Difference between fair value depreclation and historical cost depreclation 4686
(20,254) | Balance at 31™ March: (19,788)

Capital Adjustiment Account

The Capital Adjustment Account absorbs the timing differences arising from the different
arrangements for accounting for the consumption of non-current assets and for financing
the acquisition, construction or enhancement of those assets under statutory provisions.
The Account is debited with the cost of acquisition, construction or enhancement as
depreciation, impaiment losses and amortisations are charged to the Comprehensive
Income and Expenditure Statement (with reconciling postings from the Revaluation
Reserve to convert fair value figures to a historical cost basis). The Account is credited
with the amounts set aside by the Commissioner as finance for the costs of acquisition,
construction and enhancement. The Account contains accumulated gains and losses on
Investment Properties and gains recognised on donated assets that have yet to be
consumed by the Group/Commissioner.

The Account also contains revaluation gains accumulated on Property, Plant and
Equipment before 1 April 2007.
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201718 - [ 201819
£'000 £'000
(58,926) | Balance at 1% April: (59,603)
Reversal of ltems relating to capital expenditure debited or credited to ]
the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement;
3,768 | Charges for depreclation and impalrment of non-current assets 3,822
671 | Revaluation losses on property, plant and equipment . 0
(910) | Revaluation gains on property, plant and equipment (45)
83 | Amortisation of Intangible assets Bi
363 | Amounts of non~current assets written off on disposal or sale as part of 538
the gainfloss on disposal to the Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure Statement
(54,961) (56,205)
i Capltal financing appliad in the year:
(305) | Use of Capital Recelpts Reserve to finance new capital expenditure (616)
(3,914) | Use of Reserves 1o firance new capital expenditure (3,097) |
(318) | Capital grants and contributions credited to the Comprehensive Income (323)
and Expenditure Statement that have been applled to capltal financing |
B (128) | Application of grants to capital financing from the Capltal Grants (324)
Unapplied Account
(16) | Capital expenditure charged agalinst the General Fund {7
(4,682) (4,367)
40— Movements in the market value of Investment Properties deblted or 0
credited to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statemant |
(59,603) | Balance at 31" March: | (59,572)

Accumulated Absences Account

This account absorbs the differences that would otherwise arise on the General Fund
Balance from accruing for compensated absences eamed but not taken in the year.
Statutory arrangements require that the impact on the General Fund Balance is
neutralised by transfers to or from the Account.

201718 201819
£'000 £'000
368 | Balance at 1™ April: 525
{(368) | Settlement or cancellation of accrual made at the end of the preceding year (525)
825 | Amounts accrued at the end of the current year '

525 | Balance at 31" March: 220 |

Pensions Reserve

The Pensions Reserve absorbs the timing differences arising from the different
arrangements for accounting for post-employment benefits and for funding benefits in

accordance with statutory provisions.

The Chief Constable accounts for post-

employment benefits in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement as
the benefits are earned by employees accruing years of service, updating the
liabilities recognised to reflect inflation, changing assumptions and investment returns
on any resources set aside to mest the costs. However, statutory arrangements
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require benefits earned to be financed as the Chief Constable makes employer's
contributions to pension funds or eventually pays any pensions for which it is directly
respongible. The debit balance on the Pensions Reserve therefore shows a
substantial shortfall in the benefits earned by past and current employees and the
resources the Commissioner has set aside to meet them. The statutory
arrangements will ensure that funding will have been set aside by the time the
benefits come to be paid.

201718 201819
£'000 £'000
1,312,684 | Balance at 1* April: 1,182,188
(167,489) | Actuarlal {gains) or losses on pensions assets and liabllitles 81,200

(18,677) | Reversal of ltems relating to retirement beneflts debited or cradited to the (19,048)
Surplus or Deficlt on the Provision of Services In the Comprehensive
Income and Expenditure Statement

55,670 | Employer's pensions contributions and direct payments to pensioners 48,109
payable In the year.

0 | Potential Impact of recent Police Penslon Legal Challenge (McCloud) 78,708
1,182,188 | Balance at 31* March: 1,371,157

d Capital Receipts Reserve

The Deferred Capital Receipts Reserve holds the gains recognised on the disposal of
non-current assets but for which cash settlement has yet to take place. Under
statutory arrangements, the Commissioner does not treat these gains as usable for
financing new capital expenditure until they are backed by cash recsipts. When the
deferred cash settlement eventually takes place, amounts are transferred to the
Capital Receipts Reserve.

201718 201819
£'000 £'000
(91) | Balance at 1* April: (23)

Transfer of deferred sale proceeds credited as part of the gain / loss on
disposal to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Ststement

0
68 | Transfer to the Capltal Recelpts Reserve upon recelpt of cash 23
(23) | Balance at 31* March: 0

0

Collaboration Fair Share Reserve

The Collaboration Falr Share Reserve has been set up to represent the restatement
of collaborative costs and reflects the difference beiween the fair value of
collaborative costs and actual expenditure incurred in accordance with accounting
standards.

201718 2018/19
£000 £'000
154 | Balance at 1% April: 42
(154) | Revarsal of adjustment made at the end of the preceding year (42)
42 | Amounts adjusted at the end of the current year 342
42 | Balance at 31* March: 342
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23.Cash flow statement — operating activities

2017118 2018M9
£'000 £'000
43,856 | Net (surplus) or deficit on the provision of services 112,586
Adjustments for non-cash movements:
(4,316) | Depreciation (4,372)
8 | Investment Impairmant 0
200 | Revaluation losses on Property, Plant & Equipment 0
{36,893) | Net charges made for Retirement Benefits {107,770)
(126) | Sale of Fixed Assets (NBV) 100
125 | Contribution to Provisions (218)
{68) | Loss on Revaluation of FInanclal Assels available for sale 0
0 | Increase/Decrease in Interest on Investments accrual (8)
2 | Increase/Decrease In Interest on Borrowing accrual 0
30 | Increase/Decrease In Stock 4
523 | Increase/Decraasea In Debtors (2,281)
{2,916) | Increase/Decrease in Creditors (3,338)
{43 ,551) {117,883)
Adjustments for ltems Included In the net surplus or
deficlt on the provision of services that are Investing
and financing activities:
238 IProceeds from the sale of property, plant and equipment, @3)
nvastment property and intangible assets
(202) 2‘,,2‘,’, ;;?ny;nn?:ts for financing activities — Agency 867
483 | Payments for and Recelpts from investing actlvities 307
519 1,181
824 | Net cash flows from operating activities (4,148)
24.Cash flow statement - investing actlvities
2017118 201819
£000 £000
5,419 :’;r:g:;ea 2:' ‘:nrz:grﬁil ap ;rsjd equipment, Investment 3,547
76,691 | Purchase of short-term and long-term investments 87,804
312 | Other payments for Investing activities 373
(238) Proceeds from the sale of praperty, It and equipment, 23
Investment property and intanglble assets
{82,806) | Proceeds from short-term and long-term Investments (86,528)
{795) | Other recelpts from Iinvesting activities {680)
{1,417) | Net cash flows from investing activities 4,539
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25.Cash flow statement - financing activities

2017/18 2018/19
£'000 £'000
172 | Repayments of short and long-term borrowing 190
202 | Other payments for financing activities (867)
374 | Net cash flows from flnancing actlvities {677)
26.Agency Services

Since April 2015, The Police and Crime Commissioner for Dyfed Powys has been the
strategic lead for the financial administration of the ‘GoSafe’ Partnership. ‘GoSafe’ is the
public facing image of the Wales Road Casualty Reduction Partnership which comprises
the 4 Welsh Police Forces, 22 Unitary Authorities for Wales and the Welsh Government
(as the Trunk Road authority).

The '‘GoSafe’ Partnership is funded from two principal sources: a Welsh Government grant,
and utilisation of income received from attendance of offenders on Speed Awareness
Courses. During 2018/19, the Police and Crime Commissioner for Dyfed Powys submitted
grant claims totalling £2.556m (£2.55m in 2017/18), and made creditor payments to the
value of £6.31m (£6.15m in 2017/18}, on behalf of the Partnership.

In accordance with the requirements of IAS 18 Revenue, the Code of Practice requires that
where an organisation acts as an agent, transactions will not be reflected in an authority’s
financial statements, with the exception of cash collected or expenditure incurred by the
agent on behalf of the principal, in which case there Is a debtor or creditor position and the
net cash is included in Financing Actlvitles in the Cash Flow Statement.

27.Collaborative Arrangements

Police forces in Wales have a long, successful history of collaborating to develop
specialist areas of policing. This included those under the remit of the former Police
Authorities of Wales Joint Committee. Future collaboration will be driven by the need to
satisfy the Strategic Policing Requirement and by the outcomes of the Regional Strategic
Assessment of threats, ricks and harm to the southem region of Wales.

The Police and Crime Commissioner for each Police Force will be responsible for
ensuring the Strategic Policing Requirement is met. As part of this, he will look to work in
collaboration with other Commissioners and forces to provide the most effective service
possible. Such agreements are regulated by Section 22A of the Police Act 1996, as
amended by the Police Reform and Social Responsibility Act 2011.

The collaborative services and their funding continue under revised Commissioner and
Force Governance arrangements. These are in effect considered as ‘Pooled Budgets’
with agreements for Funding Contributions, made and varied from time to time, and
certain Specific Government Grants. The pooled budgets are effectively hosted by the
Commissioner and Force for South Wales Police on behalf of the four police forces in
Wales.

In 2017/18 an All Wales Collaboration Team was established on a short term basis to
coordinate existing activities and identify new opportunities for collaboration across the
four Forces in Wales. The team is led by a Deputy Chief Constable and Is funded based
on agreed contributions from each Force in Wales. The total costs of the team in 2018/19
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were £396k (2017/18 - £243k) and Dyfed Powys Police’s contribution to these costs was
£91.5k in 2018/18 (2017/18 — £61.5k).

The first table below details a summary of the Income and Expenditure Statement for the
main activities of the collaborative units based on the funding contributions that each
Force made to the collaborative arrangement.

Included in accouniing policies under joint arrangements are definitions and an
explanation of the new accounting requirements for joint operations, the latter involving
shares of income, expenditure, assets and liabilities. As a result of the requirement of
IFRS11, the second table below provides revised information relating to Dyfed Powys
Police and for other forces to show the totals for each joint operation.

As a result of the requirements of IFRS11, gross expenditure in the CIES has been
increased by £1,134k and income/grants have been Increased by £792k, an increase in
net expenditure of £342k. This net increase has been reversed in the Movement in
Reserves Statement with no impact on the Police Fund bailance.

Assets, debtors and creditors in respect of the arrangements have remained in the
balance sheets of forces on the basis of materiality.

*North Wales Police are basing their Dedicated Security Post (DSP) costs on income and
expenditure rather than an allocation based on population in Wales. Their income and
expenditure for DSP is therefore not included in the tables below. They are not included in
the Regional Task Force, which operate in the Southern Welsh Forces. For the Regional
Organised Crime Unit, North Wales Police Contribute to the North West Region of
England and North Wales.

The Expenditure and Income Statements for the main collaborative arrangements are
shown on the following page:
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2018/1
TOTAL
e |.eielsgds [<2 B |8
[ . E ]
£g8 | ff3g| 88 (§3= |% 3.
seh |3Bis|3pdg 385 [F: g3
882 |68 2 2% g E
g 5 -
So?lflce 5
Classificat! a
assification 5P _g @ 3 g . g | 2
§5 (3% |3s & : it
Zo Zo a _'E E g & g.
£000 £000 £'000 £000 £'00 £000 £000
Pay e 7,541 428 3,805 4,855 1,720 11,480 20,820
gg‘;gﬁm 1,644 48 380 2,333 575 1,656 6,634
gx'::: el 9,185 474 4,185 7,188 2,205 13,136 36,463
Specific Grant
heet (9,146) (474) (4,159) (3.787) 0 (1,167 | (18,733
Income (39) 0 (26) (1,612) @1) 245)|  (1,843)
sl Income | g,18s) (474) (4,188) (5,299) @21 (1.412) |  (20,576)
{Surplus) or
Deflclt - to be
:"o':g:" from 0 0 0 1,889 2,274 11,724 15,887
Contributions
as follows:
Eorce
Conirlbutions
{Net):
Dyfed-Powys 0 0 0 (384) (463) (3,645) (4,492)
Gwent 0 0 0 (491) (590) 2,798)| (3.877)
North Wales 0 0 0 0 0 0 T
South Wales 0 0 0 (1,014) (1,221 (5.283)|  (7,518)
;‘;‘:t'ﬂ';‘l“’g:m 0 0 0 (1,889) 2274) | (11724 (15.867)
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Each Force's contribution towards Expenditure and Income for 2018/19 is as follows:

TOTAL
§ ¥ 3 . 5
= E 5 g 5 8
E 8 &< & ’E Eqgx = E E
[~ [ [ .‘!3 £ E g
‘E 2 § i 'E é 3 £ & v a‘e o
3 I 3 & E
3 £ 3 a 3¢ & 5
Service National Natlonal Natlonal Intefligence/ | intelligence Speclalist
Classlification Policing Policing Policing investigation (Agresd Operations
and agresd {Population | (Population | (Population (Population Financlal {Agreed
basis of = natlonal = national = national = national Contribution Financlal
apportionment baneflt benefit benefit benefit = local Contribution
basls) basls) basis) basis) delivery) = local
dellvery)
£'000 E'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £°000
Dyfed-Powys 1,519 78 409 1,529 467 4,084 8,086
Gwent 1,727 89 485 1,739 596 3,133 T.749
North Wales 2,046 106 2,262 0 0| o| 4414
South Wales 3,893 201 1,049 3,920 1,232 5918 16,214
Gross '

Expenditure 9,185 474 4,185 7.188 2,295 13,136 36,463
Dyfed-Powys {1,519) {78) (409) ' (1,127) 4) (439} | (3,578)
Gwent {1,727) (89) {465) {1,282) {6) (337) | (3,908)
North Wales (2,0486) (108} (2,262) 0 o 0| {(4414)
South Wales (3,803) (201) (1,049) (2,890) {11) (636} | (8,680)
3 o bincoms (9,185) (474) (4,185) (5,299) (21) (1.412) | (20,576)
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201718
TOTAL
[T T O 2
(= [ k E b= E
i HHH R TR
2EE [ 3 3843 |3i5 B: |5
ofg |CEsd |OF g 4 £
[ -]
i 7% | # 3
Service 5
Classiication 2
i (||
= g E % = g 0
i = - E o E g 8 ,ﬁ-g
£'000 £'000 £000 £000 £'000 £'000 £'000
E:gen dure 5,574 425 4,356 4,793 1554 | 11,202 27,904
gg‘;jﬁm 1,142 30 285 1,201 411 1,568 4,637
gx’::: — 6,716 455 4,641 5,994 1,965 12,860 32,631
poecioGrant | (g772)|  (485) (4,641) (4,320) (500) |  (1.473}|  (18,161)
Income 56 0 0 (43) (2) {163) (152)
S income | (g718) |  (488) (4.641) (4,363) (502)| (1,836) | (18,313)
{Surplus) or
Deficlt - to be
funded from 0 0 0 1,631 1483 11,224 14318
Contributions
as follows:
Eorce
Contributions
{Net)
Dyfed-Powys 0 0 0 (348) (208) |  (3,457) {4,103)
Gwent 0 0 0 (384) (380) | (2.594) (3,368)
North Wales 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
South Wales 0 0 0 (889) (785)| (5.173) (6,847)
Total F
c onmb‘:u"f:m 0 0 0 {1,831) (1,463) | (11,224) | (14,318)
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Each Force's contribution towards Expenditure and Income for 2017/18 was as follows:

= TOTAL
5 = & & - a S
B2 (e [Ele (g8, |E
g 8 g a2 80 = E
o 6 &5 E §Q & = 8
o cg 58§ | 545 55 g
SO R LT G :
3E 3 : & S
Ca =
Service | National . National Natlonal Intelligence!/ | Intslligence Speclalist
Classification Pollcing Policing Policing Investigation (Agreed Operations
and agreed {Population | (Population | (Population | (Population Financial (Agreed
basis of - national - natlonal - national — national Contribution Financlal
apportionment beneflt benefit benefit benefit =local Contribution
basis) basls) basls) basis) delivery) = local
dellvery)
£000|  £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £000 |  £000 |
Dyfed-Powys 1,113 75 472 1,279 400 | 3,998 7,337
Gwent 1,260 1 8; 536 1,448 510 3,087 6,906
North Wales 1,501 102 2,428 0 0 0 l 4,031
South Wales 2,842 103 | 1,206 3,266 1,055 5,795 14,357 |
Gross el
Expenditure 6,716 455 4,641 5,894 1,065 I 12,860 | 32,631
Dyfed-Powys (1,113) (75) {472) (931) (102} (509) {3,202)
Gwent (1,260) (85) {535) (1,054) {130) {390) | (3,454)
l North Wales (1,501) {102} (2,428) 0 0 0 {4,031)
South Wales {2,842) {193) {1,208) {2,378) (270) (737) | (7,626)
Total Income
& Grants (6,716) (455) (4,641) (4,363) (502) (1,636) | (18,313)
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Other emplovees — (excludes senior officers — itemised above)

The other Group employees receiving more than £60,000 remuneration for the year
(excluding employer's pension contributions) were paid the following amounts:

T 201718 : 201819 ]

Number of ei'nployoas _ | Number of employees* '

| 10 B £60,000 - £64,999° 10 ]
2 £65,000 - £69,099 | 6
4 ] £70,000 - £74,899 3

B 1 £75,000 - £79,990 3 1
5 £80,000 - £84,999 2

[ 1 B £85,000 - £89,999 B 2 ]
0 £90,000 - £94,099 il 1

0 | e05000-f£09.008 0 ]

No other staff employed by the Commissioner received remuneration of more than £60,000
in 2018/19.
Ratio of Chief Constable Remuneration/Chief of Staff Remuneration

The revision to the Accounts and Audit Regulations (Wales) in 2014 has added a new
requirement to report the following remuneration ratio information:

a. the remuneration of the body’s Chief Constable/Chief of Staff during the year
to which the accounts relate;

b. the median full-time equivalent remuneration of all the body’s employees in
post at 31* March 2019; and

c. the ratlo of the amount in sub-paragraph (a) to the amount in sub-paragraph

(b);

Remuneration includes basic salary, overtime, allowances and benefits in kind.

Commissloner:

The remuneration of the Chief of Staff for 2018/19 was £77,505.

The median fuil-time equivalent remuneration of all the Commissioners employees as at
31% March 2019 was £25,785.

The ratio of the Chief of Staffs remuneration to the median Commissioner employee’s
remuneration was 3.01:1 (3.18:1 in 2017/18)

Chief Constable:

The remuneration of the Chief Constable for 2018/19 was £141,645 (the Chief Constable
received no benefits in kind in 2018/19, please refer to note 4 of the Officers’ Remuneration
table, above).

The median full-time equivalent remuneration of all the Chief Constable’'s employees as at
31* March 2019 was £35,176..

The ratio of the Chief Constable’s remuneration to the median Chief Constable employee's
remuneration was 4.03:1 (3.93:1 in 2017/18)
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mbe
The following amounts were paid to members in 2018/19 and 2017/18.

Group Commissioner Group Commissioner

2017118 2017/18 201819 2018119
£'000 £'000 £000 £'000
0 0 | Salaries 0 0
1 1| Allowances 3 3
0 0 | BExpenses 0 0
1 1| Total 3 3

29.External audit costs

In 2018/19 the Commissioner and Chief Constable jointly incurred costs of £79k in relation
to the audit of the Statement of Accounts, certification of grant claims and statutory
inspections and to non-audit services provided by the Force's external auditors (2017/18:

£79k).

30.Grant Income

The Commissioner credited the following grants, contributions and donations to the

Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement in 2017/18 and 2018/19:

2017118 2018/19
£'000 £'000
Credited to Taxation and Non-specific grant Income
(32,861) | Police Revenue Grant {33,5679)
{3,582) | Welsh Floor Grant (2,633)
(3,935) | Revenue Support Grant (4,278)
(317) | Capital Grants and Contributions (322)
{40,695) | Total (40,812)
Credited to services
Revenue grants
(1,941) | Grants Racelvable from the Home Office (1.531)
(2,442) | Police Community Support Officers (2,479)
(605) | Victim Support Services (600)
(364) | Private Finance Inltiative (351)
(303) | All Wales Schools Liaison Programme (320)
{195) | Capital Loans Grant (195)
{(77) | Other Revenuse Grants (26)
Collaborative Granis
(472) | Dedicated Security Posts (Ports Unit) {403)
(6,399) | Total (5,905)

In 2017/18, £1,085k of income was included in respect of the Group's fair share of other
Collaborative Grants. These amounts are no longer being recognised as Grant Income In the
Group’s Statement of Accounts but are, instead, being recognised as ‘contributions from other
police forces'. South Wales Police as the lead force on these Collaborative Arrangements,
recelve and sign off the Grant Agreements, submit the grant claims and recognise the amounts
as grants in their accounts.
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31. Related parties

The Group/Commissioner is required to disclose material transactions with related parties,
i.e. bodies or individuals that have the potential to control or influence the
Group/Commissioner or to be controlled or influenced by the Group/Commissioner.
Disclosure of these transactions allows readers to assess the extent to which the
Group/Commissioner may have been constrained in its ability to operate independently or
might have secured the ability to limit another party’s ability to bargain freely with the
Group/Commissioner.

Central Government and Other Public Bodies

Central government has significant influence over the general operations of the
Group/Commissioner - it is responsible for providing the statutory framework within which
the Group/Commissioner operates, provides the majority of its funding in the form of grants
and prescribes the terms of many of the transactions that the Group/Commissioner has with
other parties. Grants received from central government departments are set out in note 30,
‘Grant Income’, most of which have strict terms and conditions.

ior Officers

The Commissioner sits on the board of the Police ICT Company. The Police ICT Company
is a company limited by guarantee and is wholly owned by Police and Crime Commissioners
across England and Wales.lt was established to support policing to make people safer
through better ICT and through seeking to act as a bridge between the policing,
technological and commercial worlds. During the 2018/19 financial year, the Police and
Crime Commissioner for Dyfed-Powys paid a total to the Police ICT Company of £99,582
(2017/18: £92,458). There were no creditor or debtor balances with the Police ICT Company
at the year end.

No other senior officers declared any related party relationships for 2018/19.

Entities Con d or significantly Infl by the Commissioner

The Commisgioner, Chief Constable and both Chief Financial Officers are trustees of the
“Safer Dyfed Powys Diogel” trust. Further information about the Trust is included in note 38,
‘Trust Funds'. During 2018/19 The Police and Crime Commissioner for Dyfed-Powys did not
undertake any financial transactions with Safer Dyfed-Powys Diogel (2017/18: £0).

Members

The total allowances and expenses paid to Members during the year are shown in note 28.

None of the members, or parties related to them, have undertaken any material transactions
with the Commissioner in 2018/19.

32, Capital expenditure and capital financing

The total amount of capital expenditure incurred in the year is shown in the table below,
together with the resources that have been used to finance it. Where capital expenditure is to
be financed in future years by charges to revenue as assets are used by the
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Group/Commissioner, the expenditure results in an increase in the Capital Financing
Requirement (CFR), a measure of the capital expenditure incurred historically by the
Group/Commissioner that has yet to be financed. In 2015/16 reserves were utilised to repay
the Capital Financing Requirement.

201718 201819 1
£'000 £000
0 | Opening caplital financing requirement: 0
(4,682) | Property, Plant and Equipment {4,367)
Sources of finance:
305 | Capital receipts 616
447 | Govemment grants and other contributions 647
3,914 | Capltal Reserves 3,097
16 | Direct revenue contributions 7
0 | Closing caplital financing requirement: 0
33.Leases
Group/Commissloner as Lessee
Operating Leases

The Group/Commissioner leases property from other property owners where appropriate and
affordable, to provide suitable accommodation for operational policing and support. The
Group/Commissioner also has operating leases for plant and equipment which includes
photocopiers.

The future minimum lease payments due under non-cancellable leases in future years are:

31* March 2018 31* March 2019
£'000 £'000
80 | Not later than one year 148
357 | Later than one year and not later than five years 544
838 | Later than five years 1,346
| 1,285 | Total 2,038

The expenditure charged to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement during
the year in relation to these leases was:

201718 201819
£'000 £'000
168 | Minimum lease payments 187
186 | Total 187
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Group/Commissioner as Lessor

Operating Leases

The Group/Commissioner leases out part of its property portfolio to provide suitable and
affordable accommeodation for other Public Sector Authorities.

The future minimum lease payments receivable under non-cancellable leases in future
years are:

Group Commissioner Group Commissloner
31% March 31* March 31% March 31 March 2019
2018 2018 2019
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
53 563 | Not later than one year 53 53
B 212 212 | Later than one yeer and not later 212 212
than five years
89 89 | Laterthan five years o 89 89
354 354 | Total 354 [ 354

34. Termination benefits

The number of exit packages with total cost per band and total cost of the departures
agreed during 2018/19 Is set out in the tables below.

Group:
2017118 2017118 2018/19 2018/19
Departure cost Departure cost

P | Numberof | puymentintouor | | Numborot | o, fontene

Departures agreed notice) Departures agreed notice)

£'000 £'000

£0 - £20,000 0 0 2.0 39
£20,001 - £40,000 0 0 12.7 477
£40,001 - £60,000 1 a7 27 130
1 47 17.4 646

The above costs in 2018/19 relate fo a voluntary severance scheme that was made
available to police officers to apply to exit the organisation prior to their pension age.

Commisslioner:
No exit packages were charged to the Commissioner’s accounts in 2018/19,

The total cost of exit packages is charged to the Group’s Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure Account in the current year. The cost of the departures is included in the
Service Analysis and the Pension Strain as a Non Distributed Cost.

35.Defined benefit pension schemes

Participation jn Pension schemes

As part of the terms and conditions of employment of its officers, the Group makes
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contributions towards the cost of post-employment benefits. Although these benefits will not
actually be payable until employees retire, the Group has a commitment to make the
payments that needs to be disclosed at the time that employees eam their future
entitiement.

The Group participates in two post-employment schemes:

¢ The Local Government Pension Scheme (LGPS), administered locally by Carmarthenshire
County Council — this is a funded defined benefit CARE (Career Average Revalued Eamings)
scheme, meaning that the Group and employees pay confributions into a fund, calculated at
a level intended to balance the pensions liabllities with investment assets.

e The Police Officer Pension Scheme — this is an unfunded defined benefit CARE scheme,
consequently the fund has no investment assets. Benefits payable are funded by
contributions from employers and employees with any difference between benefits payable
and contributions receivable being met by the top-up grant from the Home Office.
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Local Gwor-n;ont

Pension Scheme
]
AR NN
[L] (-]
§
201718 201718 :zo1ms
£'000 £000  £000
(7,050) (308) = (28,048)
___an 0 0
(130) 0 0
(980) “2)  (327%)
{8,207) (347) (80,784)
1,241 0 0
0 0 53017
8,072 403 50073
0 0 54,186
1,108 56 97,382
0 1,050 0
1,106 1,106 97,32
8,207 8207 60,784
(3,070) (3,070) (28,928)

Police Pension Scheme

;

2017TH8
£000

0
0
0

0

0
0

87,302

87,392 Total net cost

60,784

(26,928)

Local Govorn;nm

Pension Scheme

2018119 |

£000

Comprehensive Incoms and
Expenditure Statement (CIES):

Cost of serviges:
Cument servica cost
Past service cost
Other

Financing and Invesiment
Income and Expendiiure:

Net Interest expense

Total Post Employment Benafit
Charged to the Surplus or
Deflcit on the Provision of
Services

Other Post Empioyment Benefit
Charged to the CIES _

Remeasurement of the net
defined benefit llabllity
comprising:
Return on plan assets {(excluding
the amount Included In the net
Interest =xpense!
Remesasurement galns and
losses arising on changes In D
| _democgrachic assumptions
Remaeasurement gains and
losses arising on changes In
financial assumpions

{6,0268)
(3,278)
(118)

(11,224)

{11,576)

Other — experience (galn)ioss 0o

Total Post Employment Beneflt

Charged to the CIES (18.300)

Commissioning Costs (Intra- 0 '

group transfer)

Movement in Reserves
Stelemeni:

Reversal of net charges made to
the Surplus or Defich for the
Provislon of Services for post -
employment benefits In
accordance with the Code

Actual emount charged against
the Genaral Fund Balance for
pensions in the year:

Employers’ contributions payable
to scheme

11,224

{3,240)

(904)

(18,300)

(280)

(36)

(316)

(286)
0
(602)

(17,698)

{18,300) |

11,224

(3,240)

Police Penslon Scheme
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|

g
(L]
;
201819 2018/19

£000 £'000
{23,230) 0
) .
0 0
(30,577) 0
{129,260) 0
0 0
0 0
(74,124) 0
0 0
(203,384) 0
0 (203,384)
(203,384)  (203,384)
129,260 129,260
(29,475) (29,475)
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Transactions Relatin P mpl fits

The cost of retirement benefits is recognised in the reported cost of services when they are
eamed by employees, rather than when the benefits are eventually paid as pensions.

However, the charge the Group is required to make against council tax is based on the cash
payable in the year, so the real cost of post-employment/retirement benefits is reversed out of
the General Fund via the Movement in Reserves Statement. The following transactions have
been made in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement and the General Fund
Balance via the Movement in Reserves Statement during the year:

An intra-group transfer has been processed from the Chief Constable’s accounts to the
Commissioner's accounts, as the Chief Constable is not responsible for holding reserves.

The cumulative amount of actuarial gains and losses recognised in the Group and
Commissioner Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statements to the 31 March 2019 is
loss of £7,076k (2017/18: £9,313k gain).

Pensions Assets and Liabiliti i in the Balance Sh

The amount included in the Balance Sheet arising from the Group’s obligation in respect of its
defined benefit plans is as follows:

Local Government Pension Police Pension Schame
) Scheme
201718 2018/19 201718 2018119
£'000 £'000 £000|  £000
Present value of the defined benefit obligation (161,620) | (186,877) | (1,147,003) | (1,321.002)
Falr value of plan assets 126,534 136,722 0 0
Net liabllity arising from defined benefit obligation (35.3957 {50,155) | (1,147,003) {1,321,002)

Pensions Liability

The Pensions Liability which is disclosed on the Group Balance Sheet reflects the underlying
commitments that the Chief Constable has in the long run to pay retirement benefits. In
2018/19 this amounts to £1,371,157k compared to £1,182,188k in 2017/18.

Recognition of the total liability has a substantial impact on the net worth as recorded in the
Balance Sheet. However statutory arrangements for funding the deficit mean that the financial
position of the Group remains healthy. This is because to finance the liability the Chief
Constable makes a pension contribution of 21.3% for police officers and 13.5% for police staff,
with the actual pensions and commuted lump sums being met directly by the Police Pension
Fund Account, which is funded by the Home Office via the Commissioner.
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Reconciliation of the movements in the Fair value of Scheme (Plan) Assets

Local Govemment Penslon Police Panslon Schame
Scheme
2017118 2018/19 2017118 201819
£000 £'000 £'000 £000
Opening falr value of scheme assets 119,772 126,534 0 0
Interest Income 3,147 3,448 0 0
Remeasurement gain / (loss)
¢ The retum on plan assets excluding 1,241 4,500 H 0
the amount included In the net
interest expense
Contributions from employer 3,070 3,240 28,928 29,475
Contributions from employees Into the 1,408 1,501 5,854 5,879
scheme
Benefits paid {1,974) (2,385) (34,782) {35,354)
Other (If applicable) (130) {116) 0 0
Closing fair value of scheme assets 126,534 136,722 0 0

The majority of the employment costs are incurred by the Chief Constable, therefore assets
and liabilities relating to post-employment benefits remain within the Chief Constable and
Group accounts.

Funded Llabilitles: Local
Government Penslon Schems

Unfunded Liabilitles: Police
Penslon Scheme

201718 201819 201718 2018/19
£000 £000 £000 £000
Opening Balance at 1* April: {159,043) (161,629) (1,273,413) (1,147,093}
Current service cost {7,050) (6,926) (28,048} {23,230)
Interest cost {4.127) {4,352} (32,736) (30,577}
Contributions from scheme participants (1,408) {1.501) (5,854} {5,879)
Remeasurement gains and {losses)
¢ Remeasurement gains/ (losses) H 0 63,017 0
arlsing from changes In
demcgraphic assumptions
s Remeasurement gains / 8,072 (11,576) 50,873 (74,124)
{losses) arlsing from changes in
financial assumptions
s Other {if applicable) 0 0 54,186 0
Past service cost (5) (3,278) 0 (75,453)
Losses/ {gains) on curtalment {42) 0 0 0
Benefits Pald 1,974 2,386 34,782 35,354
Closing balance at 31* March {161,629) (186,877) (1,147,003} (1,321,002)
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ocal ment Pension Scheme rsed:
fi i Fair value of Schame assets
201718 2018/19
£000 £'000
Cash and cash equivalents 760 | 820
Equity Instruments 89,333 94,475
Bonds 24,547 22,833
 Property 11,804 18,504
Total Assets 126,534 136,722
Basis for estimatin s and Liabiliti

Liabilities have been assessed on an actuarial basis using the projected unit credit method,
an estimate of the pensions that will be payable in future years dependent on assumptions
about mortality rates, salary levels etc.

Both the LGPS and Police Officer pension scheme liabilities have been estimated by Mercer
Human Resource Consulting, an independent firm of actuaries, estimates for the LGPS Fund
being based on the latest full valuation of the scheme as at 31 March 2017.

The significant assumptions used by the actuary have been:

Local Government Penslon Pollee Penslon Scheme
Scheme
201718 2018119 201718 2018/19
Mortallty assumptions: |
Longevity at 65 (60 for police scheme) for l
current pensioners: -
| e Men 229 23.0 264 | 26.5
» Women 25.6 25.7 28.4 284
Longevy at 65 (60 for police scheme) for future |
pensioners:
e Men 25.1 25.2 28.3 28.4 |
» Women 27.9 28.1 30.3 30.4
Other assumptions:
Rate of inflation 2.1% 2.2% 2.1% 2.2%
Rate of increase In salarles 3.6% 3.7% 3.5% 3.7%
Rate of Increase in pensions 2.2% 2.3% | 2.2% | 2.3% |
Rate for discounting scheme liabilities 2.7% 25% ] 2.7% 2.5% |

The estimation of the defined benefit obligation is sensitive to actuarial assumptions set out
in the table above.

The sensitivity analyses below have been determined based on reasonable possible
changes of the assumptions occurring at the end of the reporting period and assumes for
each change that the assumption analysed changes while all the other assumptions remain
constant. The assumptions in longevity, for example, assume that life expectancy increases
or decreases for men and women. In practice, this is unlikely to occur, and changes in some
of the assumptions may be interrelated. The estimations in the sensitivity analysis have
followed the accounting policies for the scheme I.e. on an actuarial basis using the projected
unit credit method. The methods and types of assumptions used in preparing the sensitivity
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analysis below did not change from those used in the previous period.

[ | impact on the defined banefit obligation In the
scheme
Local Government Police Scheme 2018/19 Increase In assumption Decrease in assumption
£'000 £'000
Longevity (Increase or decrease by 1 year) 3,542 0
Rate of inflation (increase or decrease by 0.1%) 4,148 0
' m )of increase In salaries {(increase or decrease by 855 _ 0
Rate for discounting scheme liabllities (increase or 0 4,058
decrease by 0.1%)
impact on the defined benefit obligation In the
schame
Pollce Pansion Scheme 2016/19 Increase In assumption | Dacrease In assumption
£'000 £000
T.ongevity (increase or decrease by 1 year) 35,534 0
Rate of Inflation (Increase of decrease by 0.1%) 27,182 0
m ;)f increase In salaries (Increase or decrease by 5,169 0
Rate for discounting scheme liabilitles {Increase or 0 26.5¥
decrease by 0.1%)

Impact on the Group's Cash flows

The objectives of the scheme are to keep employers’ contributions at as constant a rate as
possible. The Group has agreed a strategy with the scheme's actuary to achieve a funding
level of 100% over the next 3 years. The triennial valuation was completed on 31* March
2017 and details of the future employers' rates are shown below:

Year Employer rate
2017118 13.5% -
201819 = 13.5%
2019/20 13.5%
i ension L allenge - r Average R ed Earnings (McCl arqeant).

The Chief Constable of Dyfed-Powys Police, along with other Chief Constables and the
Home Office, currently has 50 claims lodged against them with the Central London
Employment Tribunal. The claims are in respect of alleged unlawful discrimination arising
from the Transitional Provisions in the Police Pension Regulations 2015.

Claims of unlawful discrimination have also been made in relation to the changes to the
Judiciary and Firefighters Pension regulations and in December 2018 the Court of Appeal
(McCloud / Sargeant) ruled that the ‘transitional protection’ offered to some members as part
of the reform to public sector pensions amounts to unlawful discrimination.

On 27 June the Supreme Court refused leave to appeal on the McCloud case. In light of this
it Is envisaged that the Court will require changes to arrangements for employees who were
transferred to the new schemes potentially including Police Pension Scheme members. This
would to lead to an increase in Police Pension Scheme liabilities and our actuaries (Mercers)
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using specific assumptions and applying these across the Police scheme as a whole have
estimated the potential increase in scheme liabilities for Dyfed-Powys Police to be
approximately 6.5% or £75.4m of pension scheme liabilities. This increase is reflected in the
IAS19 Disclosure as a Past Service Cost. The actuaries have highlighted that this estimate is
based on one potential remedy, the potential impact of any difference in the profile of the
force’s membership compared with the scheme as a whole and that the figures are highly
sensitive to assumptions around short term eamings growth.

The impact of an increase in scheme liabilities arising from McCloud / Sargeant judgment will
be measured through the pension valuation process, which determines employer and
employee contribution rates. The next Police Pension valuation is due to take place in 2020
with implementation of the results planned for 2023/24 and forces will need to plan for the
impact of this on employer contribution rates alongside other changes identified through the
valuation process.

The impact of an Increase in annual pension payments arising from McCloud / Sargeant is
determined through The Police Pension Fund Regulations 2007. These require a police
authority to maintain a police pension fund into which officer and employer contributions are
paid and out of which pension payments to retired officers are made. If the police pension
fund does not have enough funds to meet the cost of pensions in year the amount required
to meet the deficit is then paid by the Secretary of State to the police authority in the form of
a central government top-up grant.

With regard to the LGPS a similar adjustment to past service costs within the IAS18
Disclosure has been made for the McCloud judgment . This corresponds to a 3.2% or £3.2m
increase in liabilities. The impact of an increase in scheme liabilities arising from McCloud /
Sargeant judgment will be measured through the pension valuation process, which
determines employer and employee contribution rates.

As ‘transitional protection’ was offered to members of all the main public service pension
schemes, the government believes that the difference in treatment will need to be remedied
across all those schemes. This includes schemes for the NHS, civil service, local
govemnment, teachers, police, armed forces, judiciary and fire and rescue workers.
Continuing to resist the full implications of the judgment in Court would only add to the
uncertainty experienced by members.

The matter will be remitted to the Employment Tribunal in respect of the litigants in the
firefighters and judicial pension schemes. It will be for the Tribunal to determine a remedy.
Alongside this process, government will be engaging with employer and member
representatives, as well as the devolved administrations, to help inform their proposals to the
Tribunal and in respect of the other public service pension schemes.

36.Contingent Liabllitles
Undercover Policing Inquiry
The purpose of this inquiry is to investigate and report on undercover police operations
conducted by English and Welsh police forces in England and Wales since 1968. The inquiry
will examine the contribution undercover pelicing has made to tackling crime, how it was and
is supervised and regulated, and its effect on individuals involved — both police officers and
others who came into contact with them.
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A liabllity has been established and along with 11 other Forces, external solicitors are
engaged to represent serving officer(s). There is an agreement for Dyfed Powys Police to
meet a 5% share of generic preparation costs incurred by the legal firm. All other legal
matters to date involving Dyfed Powys Police have been dealt with in-house.

At this stage, the inquiry is not far enough progressed to reliably estimate future costs
therefore no provision has been made in the 2018/19 Accounting Statements.

edicated So i nit On-Call All Claims
The Chief Constable of Dyfed Powys along with other Chief Constables have had claims
lodged against them in relation to "on Call Allowance” under Regulation 34 Annex U Police
Reguiations 2003.
The claimants are serving, and/or retired police officers and are members of the “Dedicated
Source Handling Unit (Covert Human Intelligence Sources)". They claim that their roles
require them to answer mobile telephones and deal with those who wished to provide covert
intelligence to the police. They also claim to have supervised source handlers and these
tasks required them to monitor their phones on a daily basis.
At this stage, liability has not been established and therefore it would not be appropriate to
make a provision in the 2018/19 Accounting Statements. In addition it is not possible to
provide a reasonable estimate of liability at this stage.

37.Nature and extent of risks arising from flnancial Instruments
The Commissioner has adopted CIPFA's Revised Code of Practice on Treasury
Management and complies with the Revised Prudential Code of Capital Finance for Local
Authorities (both updated in 2017).

As part of the adoption of the Treasury Management Code, the Commissioner approves a
Treasury Management Strategy before the commencement of each financial year. The
Strategy sets out the parameters for the management of risks associated with Financial
Instruments. The Commissioner also produces Treasury Management Practices specifying
the practical arrangements to be followed to manage these risks.

The Treasury Management Strategy includes an Annual investment Strategy in compliance
with the Welsh Government's Investment Guidance for local authorities. This Guidance
emphasises that priority is to be given to security and liquidity, rather than yield. The
Commissioner's Treasury Management Strategy, together with his Treasury Management
Practices are based on seeking the highest rate of return consistent with the proper levels of

security and liquidity.
The main risks covared are:

o Credit Risk: The possibility that the counterparty to a financial asset will fail to meet its
contractual obligations, causing a loss to the Commissioner.

o Liquidity Risk: The possibility that the Commissioner might not have the cash available to
make contracted payments on time.

o Market Risk: The possibility that an unplanned financial loss will materialise because of
changes in market variables such as interest rates or equity prices.

Credit Risk

Investmenis

The Commissioner manages credit risk by ensuring that investments are placed with Banks
and Building Societies having sufficiently high credit worthiness as set out in the Annual
Investment Strategy. These include commercial entities with a high minimum long-term
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credit rating of A-, the UK Government, other Local Authorities, and organisations without
credit ratings upon which the Commissioner has received independent investment advice.

A limit of £2m is placed on the amount of money that can be invested with a single
counterparty (other than the UK government).

The Commissioner's maximum exposure to credit risk in relation to ‘non-specified’
investments of £40m cannot be assessed generally as the risk of any institution failing to
make interest payments or repay the principal sum will be specific to each individual
institution. Recent experience has shown that It is rare for such entities to be unable to meet
their commitments. A rigk of irrecoverability applies to all of the Commissioner's deposits, but
there was no evidence at the 31* March 2019 that this was likely to crystallise.

The table below summarises the nominal value of the Commissioner’s investment portfollo at
31" March 2019, and confirs that all investments were made in line with the
Commissioner's approved credit rating criteria:

Credit Credit
Rating Rating
Criterla Criterla Met Balance invested as at 31 March 2019 Total
Counterparty | ot When on 31* £'000s
Investment March
Placed? 20187
>1 >3 >6 Over
YIN YN Upto1 month months months 12
month and <3 and <6 and <12 | months
months months months
= £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £000 | £000
UK Banks | Y Y I 0 2,000 0 0 0| 2000
Foreign Y |
Banks Y | 2,000 1,500 H 0 0| 3500
UK Building [
Socleties N/A N/A 0 1,000 2,000 - 0 0 | 3,000
Bonds Y Y 0 0 0 120 | 6414 | 6534
Certificates of 0 5
Decosit Y Y 2,000 0 0 0 4 2,01&
DMO - Y 1}
treasury bill Y 1,000 0 0 | 0| 1,000
| Local 0
Authorities N/A N/A 6,000 2,000 0 0| 8,000
Total 11,000 | 6,500 2,000 120 | 6,414 | 26,034

The above analysis shows that all deposits outstanding as at 31 March 2019 met the
Commissioner’s credit rating criteria on the 31* March 2019,

Trade Recelvables

The following analysis summarises the Commissioner's potential maximum exposure to
credit risk, based on the experience gathered over the last five financial years on the level of

default on trade debtors.

Only those receivables meeting the definition of a financial asset are included, i.e. debtors
that have arisen as a result of trading activities.
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31" March 2018 31" March 2019
Gross Debtors {£'000) 3,430 2,001
Bad Debt Provision as a % of
Group Trade Debtors 1.08 2.45
Credit risk exposure 38 51 |
iquidity Risk

The Commissioner has ready access to borrowing at favourable rates from the Public Works
Loan Board and other local authorities, and at higher rates from banks and building
societies. There is no perceived rigk that the Commissioner will be unable to raise finance to
mest its commitments. It is however exposed to the risk that it will need to refinance a
significant proportion of fts borrowing at a time of unfavourably high interest rates.

The maturity analysis of financial liabilities is as follows:

31* March 2018 Loans maturing within: 31* March 2019

£'000 £'000

189 | Under 1 Year 207

189 | Total Current Borrowing 207

207 | 1 =2years 227

747 | 2 -5years 818

982 | 510 years 684

0| 10-15years 0

0| 15+ years 0

1,036 Lo:anLIL:ng Term Borrowing more than 12 | 1729

All trade and other payables are due to be paid in less than one year.

Market Risk
Interest Rate Risk
The Commissioner is exposed o risk in terms of its exposure to interest rate movements
on its borrowings and investments. Movements in interest rates have a complex impact
on the authority. For instance, a rise in interest rates would have the following effects:

» borrowings at fixed rates — the fair value of the liabilities borrowings will fall

¢ investments at fixed rates — the fair value of the assets will fall.

Price Risk

The Commissioner does not invest in pooled funds or equity shares and therefore is not
subject to any price risk (i.e. the risk that the Commissioner will suffer loss as a result of
adverse movements in the price of financial instruments).

Forelgn Exchange Risk

The Commissioner has no financial asset or liabilities denominated in a foreign currency.
It therefore has nc exposure to loss arising as a result of adverse movements in
exchange rates.
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38. Trust Funds
Safer Dyfed-Powys Diogel was formerly known as the Dyfed-Powys Crime Prevention Trust.
On 1 August 2017 the Trust was formally re-named Safer Dyfed-Powys Diogel.

Safer Dyfed-Powys Diogel is a registered charity which has been invigorated by the Police
and Crime Commissioner, with the objective to promote crime prevention and community
safety advice, reduce the fear of crime and provide education and information on community
safety amongst all the communities within Dyfed-Powys. The charity, in time, will develop
lots of community focused projects to meet these objectives and will support the delivery of
community safety in Dyfed-Powys.

Safer Dyfed-Powys Diogel is currently in a period of transition. At present, the Trust does not
proactively fundraise and is utilising it's existing balances to fund expenditure. The Trustees
will be making a decision on how best the Trust can move forward in the future.
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Joint Annual Governance Statement 2018-18

Introduction and Scope of Responsibilities

The Police and Crime Commissioner and the Chief Constable are responsible for ensuring
their business is conducted in accordance with the law, to proper standards and that public
money is safeguarded, properly accounted for and used effectively, efficiently and
economically. They also have a duty to make arrangements to secure continuous
improvement in the way in which their functions are exercised.

In discharging their overall responsibility, the Police and Crime Commissioner and the Chief
Constable are also responsible for putting in place proper arrangements for the governance
of their affairs and facilitating the exercise of their functions, which includes ensuring a sound
system of internal control is maintained through the year and that arrangements are in place
for the management of risk.

This Statement explains how the Police and Crime Commissioner and Chief Constable have
complied with the Code of Corporate Governance, which reflect the principles in the
Chartered Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy's guidance (CIPFA) Delivering Good
Governance: Guidance Notes for Policing Bodies in England and Wales 2016 Edition. It also
meets the requirements of the Accounts and Audit (Wales) Regulations 2014 (as amended),
in relation to the statement of internal control and the publication of the annual governance
statement. The approach taken this year differs to that of previous in that this document sets
out evaluation findings to governance arrangements and is supported by a matrix of
evidence detailing how the Police and Crime Commissioner and Chief Constable
demonstrate the principles and behaviours of good governance.

Principles of Good Governance

A joint Corporate Govermnance Framework comprises the systems, processes, culture and
values by which both the Office of Police and Crime Commissioner and Dyfed-Powys Police
will govemn their activities, both jointly and separately. The Framework enables the Police and
Crime Commissioner and Chief Constable to monitor achievement against the Police and
Crime Plan and to consider whether they have led to the delivery of appropriate, cost
effective services, including achieving value for money.

The system of internal control Is a significant part of that framework and is designed to
manage risk to a reasonable and foreseeable level. It cannot prevent all risk of failure to
achieve policies, aims and objectives. It can only provide reasonable, rather than absolute,
assurance of effectiveness. The system of internal control is based on an ongoing process
designed to identify and prioritise the risks to the achievement of the organisations’ aims and
objectives, to evaluate the lkelihood of those risks being realised and the impact should they
be realised, and to manage them effectively, efficiently and economically.

The CIPFA/Solace Framework Delivering Good Governance in Local Government that
covers policing bodies sets out the seven principles which underpin effective governance
arrangements to ensure that the intended outcomes are defined and achieved. This
Statement provides an assessment against each of these principles.
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A. Behaving with integrity, demonstrating strong commitment to

ethical values, and respecting the rule of law

Both Corporations Sole operate in an open and transparent way, with processes in place to
support the core principle of ethics and integrity which are in accordance with the College of
Policing’s Code of Ethics. The Police and Crime Commissioner and the Chief Constable
have policies and procedures in place that comply with the law and conform to appropriate
ethical standards and standards of professional behaviour. Declarations of interests and
registers of gifts and hospitality for both the Police and Crime Commissioner and Chief
Constable are published and procedures are in place to enable any conflicts of interest to be
recorded if required.

A review of police effectiveness, efficiency, legitimacy (PEEL) undertaken by Her Majesty's
Inspectorate of Constabulary and Fire & Rescue Services (HMICFRS) in 2018 highlighted
Dyfed-Powys as being ‘Good’ at encouraging ethical decision-making, with leaders
promoting the Force’'s Code of Ethics and setting an ethical tone. Training Is provided for
leaders which includes ethical dilemmas.

The Police and Crime Commissioner and the Chief Constable have a whistleblowing policy in
place and a newly implemented and widely accessible Faimess at Work policy and process.
It alsc has a programme of random drug-testing against substance misuse.

The Ethics Committee which meets monthly includes representatives from both the Office of
the Police and Crime Commissioner and the Force and benefits from having an independent
chair from academia. It gets referrals from the workforce through the force intranet, which
can be made anonymously. When it receives the referrals, the committee decides whether a
topic constitutes an ethical issue. If it does, it commissions further research and obtains legal
advice, if needed, to determine the response with escalation to the Force's People Board if
deemed appropriate.

However, overall HMICFRS assessed Dyfed-Powys Police’'s legitimacy as ‘Requiring
Improvement’. Areas for improvement outline the following:

o The limited capability and capacity for counter corruption to effectively and fully
monitor all systems to proactively identify breaches and misuse.

e A requirement to improve access to and transparency of the faimess at work
procedures,

e The need to establish processes to identify any disproportionality in recruitment,
retention and progression of the workforce together with fair and accessible promotion
processes.

The recommendations will be progressed by the appropriate governance boards, with
oversight from the HMICFRS Govemance Group.

B. Ensuring openness and comprehensive stakeholder engagement

Effective public engagement is a statutory responsibility of Police and Crime Commissioners,
who must seek the views of the community in order to act as the bridge between policing and
the public. This engagement informs local policing priorities set by the Police and Crime
Commissioner as detailed with the Dyfed-Powys Police and Crime Plan 2017-2021, to which
the Chief Constable is held to account.

The Police and Crime Commissioner and Chief Constable regularly publish information on
the Commissioner and Chief Constable's work and achievements through the respective
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websites, social media and local and national news reports. This includes the publication of
an Annual Report, the Commissioner's bi-monthly newsletters, papers and minutes of public
meetings, as well as records of any decisions taken by the Police and Crime Commissicner.

Public consultation is undertaken on an on-going basis to inform decision-making and
support the Police and Crime Commissioner's scrutiny activity. Targeted consultation takes
place for specific decisions such as the public consultation on the council tax precept and for
scrutiny of Force activity such as the use of force and their approach to tackling the use of
illegal drugs. The Police and Crime Commissioner is scrutinised by the Police and Crime
Panel which consists of members from local authorities who also consult their local
communities and offer feedback to the Police and Crime Commissioner. Two primary
responsibilities of the Police and Criem Panel are to review the precept level sought as well
as approve the appointment of the Chief Constable and statutory roles within the OPCC.

‘Connecting with Communities’ is a priority within the Police and Crime Plan and whilst there
is evidence of good practice, there is a lack of co-ordination between Force and Office of the
Police and Crime Commissioner activity. This has been recognised as an area for
improvement and changes have been proposed to the organisational governance
arrangements to address this which will facilitate the alignment of the Police and Crime
Commissioner's and the Chief Constable’s engagement strategies in a jointly chaired Board.

C. Defining outcomes in terms of sustainable economic, social and

environmental benefits

The Police and Crime Plan is the five year corporate plan set by the Police and Crime
Commissioner for delivery by the Chief Constable. In support of this, the Chief Constable has
developed a Delivery Plan, progress against which is reported to the Police and Crime
Commissioner. The OPCC communicates activity to the public through the website and by
various engagement activities such as the council tax leaflet which is sent to every
household within the Dyfed-Powys area.

Improving the way it plans for the future is however an area for improvement for the Force
according to the HMICFRS PEEL inspection. There is a need for the Force to have a better
understanding of demand and what affects it, so that it can use its resources efficiently and
plan for the future effectively. With a clear understanding of current and future demand, the
organisation would be in a position of strength of having a sound evidence base to inform
organisational strategy, for example in relation to estates, IT and agile working. In so doing,
the Force should better itself to ensure that business benefits and retumn on investment in
capital schemes is captured and realised, a matter that HMICFRS criticised the force for
recently.

D. Determining the interventions necessary to optimise the

achievement of the intended outcomes.
Detailed resource planning is carried out annually and published within the Medium Term
Financial Plan. This assesses resource requirements based on appropriate agsumptions to
enable the Police and Crime Commissioner and Chief Constable to prioritise competing
demands for services.

Governance arrangements Iintroduced during 2018/19 support robust decision making in
order to achieve the required outcomes. The revised structure sought to bring together a
number of digparate meetings and provide a clear reporting line for decisions and actions to
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be taken. In distiling down the number of meetings, governance amangements are
predominantly led by Chief Officers however, decision-making has been devolved to enable
flexible and responsive action and befter outcomes. Accountability is supported by the
governance sfructure and processes in place. Mechanisms for performance monitoring are
currently under review to support evidenced based decision-making.

Within the structure, risks are managed and progressed during meetings as depicted within
the Corporate and Dynamic Risk Registers; recommendations borne out of HMICFRS
thematic and ad hoc inspections; along with any actions arising from the annually produced
and forward looking Force Management Statement (FMS).

Leaming the lessons is a fundamental mechanism to ensure continuous improvement to the
delivery of an efficient and effective service that is dynamic and responsive to community
need. However, our assessment suggests that there are opportunities to cascade learming In
a more structured and consistent manner, by introducing processes which are driven through
the governance structure and therefore do not wholly depend on individuals.

There is a formal business case process whereby projects are considered and project boards
are in place which monitor the implementation and achievement of agreed initiatives and
plans.

Demonstrable progress has been made to explore opportunities to work in collaboration with
others to increase efficiency and provide better, more resilient services. However, concems
have been raised in relation to goverance arrangements relating to some regional police
based collaborative activity and how assurance can be achieved that such activity is
delivering value for money. To ensure appropriate focus is given to establishing good
governance and financial management of all collaborative arrangements, this has been
placed on the Corporate Risk Register and is regularly monitored through the governance
structures. Furthermore, the Police and Crime Commissioner will become the Chairman for
the All Wales Policing Group and intends to focus on good govermance in the collaborative
arena.

During 2018, a review was undertaken of the Police and Crime Commissioner's
Commissioning Board, which resulted in a change of membership, Terms of Reference and
emphasis. The renamed Commissioning Advisory Board now acts as the reviewing body for
Dyfed Powys Police and Crime Commissioner advising him in relation to the awarding of
grant funding or the tendering for services. This includes ensuring that there is a return on
investment and evaluation of services impact. The Board, which includes a member of the
Police and Crime Panel and representatives from the Commissioner’s volunteering schemes,
focus on scrutinising services and holding service providers to account. This has been a
significant development in supporting the evaluation of commissioned services, but there is
more to be done to ensure that there is a clear understanding of the impact and return on
investment of such services.

E. Developing the entity’s capacity, including the capability of its

leadership and individuals within it

The Police and Crime Commissioner and the Chief Constable have defined structures and
roles within the organisations to enable effective leadership. This is supported by the
Corporate Governance Framework which sets out the roles and responsibilities and is critical
to enable delivery of the strategies and plans in place.

In October 2018, a new development system was introduced to track individual performance
and progression. The Development Assessment Profile (DAP) replaced a previous
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performance system which was no longer meeting organisational needs. It will enable an
individual’s performance to be monitored throughout their career and will facilitate talent
management and the development of skills. However, the system is currently in its infancy
and needs to be embedded throughout the organisations.

The Organisational Transformational Leadership programme has supported a culture shift
towards a coaching style and continuous improvement approaches within the Force and
Office of the Police and Crime Commissioner. The continued roll out of this programme will
ensure all officers ranked Inspector and above and police staff equivalents recsive training to
further embed the ethos of transformational leadership.

Improved demand analysis, strategic workforce planning and future forecasting will enable
recruitment and training to be undertaken so that the Force’s capacity remains appropriate
and sustainable to meet future demand.

The Force's Professional Standards Department continues to work hard to improve
timeliness of complaint handiing, a matter that has been subject to close scrutiny by the
Independent Office of Police Complaints (IOPC). It is positive to note that significant
improvements have been made over the last few years, and in respect of the time taken to
finalise cases by way of local resolution and proportionate investigation, the Force's
performance is either better than, or on par with, the Most Similar Force (MSF) and national
averages. In respect of recording complaints within 10 working days, performance is
consistently better than the MSF and national averages. A previous backlog In vetting
identified by HMICFRS has also been cleared.

Clearly therefore, the Department has made considerable progress in respect of timeliness
overall and this is the consequence of significant improvements in complaint handling over
the last few years. One of the key problems the Department has faced in respect of
timeliness has been the bulld-up of ‘'legacy cases' which have distorted the overall
performance of the Department. There are only a small number of these cases left to be
finalised.

The Professional Standards Department hold bi-annual meetings with the IOPC liaison
officer during which, the Force are held to account for performance in relation to complaint
and conduct handling. In 2018/19 there were no significant recommendations from the IOPC.

F. Managing Risks and Performance through Robust Internal Control

and Strong Public Financial Management

There is an embedded risk management culture across both organisations and at all levels,
with robust processes in place to ensure that risks are identified and monitored via corporate
and dynamic risk registers. The consideration of risk is a standing agenda item on all boards
across the Force, and they are regularly reviewed both at Force Executive Board and
Policing Board. The Joint Audit Committee oversees risk management arrangements and
provides advice and guidance on a regular basis.

Force assurance arangements comprise of the three lines of defence. The first line of
defence being supervisory responsibility; the second line of defence being dip sampling and
quality assurance checks carried out by management and internal audit; and the third line
being independent assurance through scrutiny at the govemance boards, office of the Police
and Crime Commissioner, and external audit and other inspectorates.

The system of internal control is a significant part of the Corporate Governance Framework
and is designed to manage risk to a reasonable and foresesable level. It cannot eliminate all
risk of failure to achieve policies, aims and objectives. It can only provide reasonable, and
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not absolute, assurance of effectiveness. Findings of the annual review of the system of
internal control are considered by the Commissioner and Chief Constable and independently
reviewed by the Joint Audit Committee (JAC).

Govemance arrangements support timely and targeted performance monitoring at various
levels of the organisations. In discharging his statutory responsibilities, the Police and Crime
Commissioner publically holds the Chief Constable to account for Force performance at the
quarterly Policing Accountability Board, where he constructively challenges and encourages
debate on organisational performance. In turn, the Police and Crime Panel hold the Police
and Crime Commissioner to account for discharging his statutory responsibiliies on a
quarterly basis.

Whilst arrangements are in place to monitor performance, there is scope to improve our
understanding of business benefits. There are examples of good practice within business
realisation plans, but this needs to be embedded throughout the organisation, to ensure that
decisions are being made based on accurate and robust information. Work is ongoing to
redefine departmental structures to support this.

G. Implementing good practices in transparency reporting and audit

to deliver effective accountability

The Police and Crime Commissioner and the Chief Constable ensure that decision- makers
involved in service delivery are accountable to them through the governance arrangements
in place in both organisations. Both of their websites publish information which is pertinent to
the public and stakeholders in line with legalisation. The Commissioner has been awarded
the Transparency Quality Mark by Comparing Police and Crime Commissioners (CoPaCC),
a national organisation which monitors police governance, in recognition for the level and
breadth of information contained on the website.

Decisions made by the Police and Crime Commissioner are published on his website in a
timely manner and publically reported to the Police and Crime Panel for their scrutiny on a
quarterly basis.

The Joint Audit Committee advises on the annual programme of internal audit and produces
an annual report summarising key findings of all audit activity and outcomes.
Recommendations for service improvements are acted upon and reported to the Committes,
although there are at times concem in relation to the timeliness of progressing actions. As
such, arrangements are now in place for Intemal Audit actlvity findings to be monitored by
the Joint Force and Commissioner's Office Audit and Quality Assurance Group, which will
encourage timely progression of actions.

Furthermore the Joint Audit Committee have assumed more responsibility in terms of
independent scrutiny and opinion cn HMIC Recommendations and Risk Identification and
Management.

Capacity within the force to audit and quality assure many aspects of policing processes is
limited which in tum has impacted the ability to utilise audit outcomes to drive improvement.

Review of Effectiveness

The Chief Constable and Commissioner have responsibility for conducting, at least annually,
review of the effectiveness of their governance framework including the system of internal
control. The review of effectiveness is informed by the work of the Corporate Governance
Group, senior managers within the organisations who have responsibility for the
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development and maintenance of the governance environment, the head of internal audit’s
annual report and also by comments made by the external auditor and other review agencies
and inspectorates. The Corporate Governance Group is predominantly responsible for the
review of governance, with minutes and actions being reviewed by the Joint Audit
Committee. The Chair of the Joint Audit Committee sits within the Corporate Governance
Group, the Minutes to which are reported to the Joint Audit Committee.

The Corporate Governance Group met four times in the last year to collate evidence and
assess progress against a matrix of evidence designed to demonstrate the Policing Services'
compliance with the Core Principles. This matrix forms the evidence base for this Annual
Governance Statement.

In accordance with regulation, the Police and Crime Commissioner and the Chief Constable
have reviewed the effectiveness of its intemal audit service. The service has complied with
all Public Sector Internal Auditing Standards {PSIAS).

The primary role of Internal Audit is to give an assurance to the Commissioner and Chief
Constable on the effectiveness of the controls in place to manage risks. To this end the
internal auditor delivers an annual opinion of the effectiveness of the controls reviewed by
the internal audit team during the year. This annual opinion, sst out in the annual report of
the Internal Auditor, is one of the key sources of evidence in support of the Annual
Governance Statement. With reference to 2018/19 the internal auditor, TIAA Ltd expressed
the following opinion:

*TIAA is satisfied that for the areas reviewed during the year that the Police and
Crime Commissioner for Dyfed-Powys and Chief Constable Dyfed-Powys Police has
reasonable and effective risk management, control and governance processes in
place. Also, there was evidence to support the achievement of value for money with
regard to economy, efficiency or effectiveriess of the sysiems reviewed. This opinion
is based solely on the matters that came lo the attention of TIAA during the course of
the internal audit reviews carried out during the year and is not an opinion on all
elements of the risk management, control and governance processes or the ongoing
financial viability which must be obtained by the Police and Crime Commissioner and
the Chief Constable from the various sources of assurance”.

The Wales Audit Office issued unqualified audit opinions in respect of the 2017/18 accounts
to both the Commissioner and Chief Constable, and were satisfied that the Commissioner
and Chief Constable had appropriate arrangements in place in the year to secure economy,
efficiency and effectiveness in their use of resources.

Both the Police and Crime Commissioner and Chief Constable have complied with the new
statutory requirement for closure of accounts to be finalised by the end of July. The reduced
deadline has significantly impacted timescales for the production of the statement of
accounts and annual governance statement, however these have been adequately prepared
for and delivered against.
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A summary of the actions that were endorsed as in progress, within the Annual Governance
Statement for 2017/18 are provided below:

Action

Progress

' Consider sustainable
development principles for
all key developments as
part of a new front door

process for ideas,
business cases and future
planning

Business case models are being rolled out
within Dyfed-Powys. All cases for resource must be
submitted in a reasoned business case, aligned to the
Treasury Green Book Model.

A corporate template for business cases has been
developed and will ensure reference to sustainable
development principles.

Embed the Police and
Crime Plan (PCP) Delivery
Plan into the organisation

The police and crime delivery plan is fully
embedded in throughout the organisation and within the
governance arrangements.

through appropriate

govemance arrangements

including performance

structures

Complete the Historic

Areas for Improvement

included in HMICFRS

Police Efficiency | progress has
Effectiveness and

Legitimacy (PEEL)

inspections to improve the
grading across the four
strands.

There is a rolling programme in place to
scrutinise all outstanding Areas For Improvement (AFis)
resulting from HMICFRS inspections and considerable
been made with closing these.
Responsibility for addressing these rests with the various
Governance Boards and Groups and further oversight is
delivered by the HMICFRS Governance group to ensure
progress.

Establish and publish a
plan of our own audit of
processes and systems
and compliance testing.
Link corporate governance
action plan to risk register.

An audit plan is in development following an
exercigse to understand what audit and testing already
takes place throughout the Force. Overseeing progress
in relation to this work is the Audit and Quality Assurance
Group.

A summary of the actions for 2018/19 together with detail as to the progress made is
provided in the table on the next page:
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Action

Embed the HMICFRS Force Management
Statement (FMS) process and utilise this
as a strategic planning tool to identify
gaps in force capabiliity to and address
policing priorities.

Complete: This is fully in place. A working
group chaired by the DCC was held monthly and
the development of chapters for FMS 2019/20 Is
underway. The submission of FMS2 2019/20 is
due on 31% May 2019.

Establish a ‘Front door process’ to
corporately Identify and  prioritise
emerging major change projects, initiating
the required capacity to implement these
programmes.

Complete: A 'Front door process’ has been
established, initially through the Change
Oversight Forum for reporting to Finance,
Efficiency and Futures Board.

Establish and consistently embed audit
and quality assurance mechanisms to
drive up data quality and improve the
force's approach to information

In progress: progress has been made however,
it is unlikely that this will be fully resolved with the
current IT systems. Improvements made so far
in terms data quality and information
management are detailed below
+ Data quality presentation (Fill it, check it,
match it)
¢ Review of auto matching procedures
within Police National Intelligence (PNI)
¢ |dentification of Management Of Police
Information 1 nominals and rectifying of
duplicate records
» Changes to mobile data processes to
encourage early checks against PNI
records and matching where appropriate.
¢ Undertaking procurement process for new
Records Management System (RMS)
¢ |nformation Commissioner's Officer (ICO)
inspection in early February 2019.

More needs to be done from an information
security perspective. The force has recruited a
Data Protection Auditor.

Audit plans around Information management will
become more developed when resources are
embedded.

Limited capacity fo undertake and coordination of
internal quality assurance checks and dip-
sampling impacts the flow of information via the
governance structure, thus limiting the ability to
drive improvement.

management
Improve financial management
arrangements to ensure early

identification of financial pressures to
facilitate robust mitigation plans.

In progress: The Finance Gold Group has been
established to which 4 sub-groups report.

The 4 sub-groups are Overtime Working, Income
Generation, Medium Term Financial Plan and
Procurement.

In addition, recruitment has taken place for extra
capacity within the finance team within the force.
Two additional Accountants started in November
2018 as well as the Assistant Director — Finance
in December 2018.
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Monitoring of the financial position continues
through both the formal governance structure
and the Finance Gold Group which has
continued to meet monthly.

The Annual Finance Seminar was held on the
30" November 2018 and building upon this, the
Police & Crime Panel 'accepted’ the
Commissioner's proposal to increase the precept
by 10.7% at its meeting on 25" January 2019.
Discussion has continued in relation to financial
resilience and sustainability over the medium
term and this will focus the work of the Medium
Term Financial Planning sub group and the
Demand & Efficiency Group over coming
months.

Work is ongoing within the Finance Department
to review and streamline financial reporting
arrangements and consideration is also being
given to the timing and sequencing of financial
reporting through the governance structure.
Considerations are also currently being given to
the optimal resourcing structure for the Finance
Department.

Develop a comprehensive Force Strategy
in line with Policing Vision 2025 and
regional priorities, clearly setting out force
priorities in relation to Estates, ICT,
People and service delivery.

Complete: The Force Sirategy has been
integrated with future long term strategic
planning. This has been presented in the HMIC
Strategic Presentation.

The document and one page summary was
submitted to the Policing Board for agreement.

Undertake a review of governance
structures to ensure effectiveness and
robust accountability and communication.

In progress: A report was submitted to Chief
Officers and considered more widely at Force
Executive Board in May 2019. A revised
structure was agreed and will be implemented
from 3™ June 2019.

Establish and embed assurance
mechanisms to compliment and support
force audit and assurance activity,
providing independent, public focussed
scrutiny of performance

In progress: Scrutiny deep dives and scrutiny
paneis are embedded. Public feedback is used
to focus future scrutiny themes. Enhanced
scrutiny framework, once approved, will increase
the OPCC's variety of assurance mechanisms,
involving wider stakeholders including the public.

Establish and embed internal performance
monitoring activity within the OPCC to
provide focus and  demonstrate
accountability and effectiveness.

Complete: The OPCC has developed a
performance indicator framework based on the
Policing Protocol 2011. This has been populated
with data for quarters two to four of 2018/19 and
reported to the Police and Crime Panel on a
quarterly basis to demonstrate the office’s
delivery against the Commissioner's statutory
responsibilities.
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Opinion
No statement of internal control can provide absolute assurance against matsrial loss; this
statement is intended to provide reasonabile assurance.

On the basis of the review of the sources of assurance set out in this statement, we are
satisfied that the Police and Crime Commissioner and Chief Constable had in place
satisfactory governance arrangements, including appropriate systems of internal control and
risk management which facilitate the effective exercise of functions.

Conclusion

The review of governance arrangements for the Police and Crime Commissioner and Chief
Constable over the last year has identifled a number of areas of Policing Services that, if
achieved, would demonstrate enhanced accountability, transparency and effective working
arrangements as well as strengthening further the governance arrangements in place.

The Commissioner and Chief Constable are committed to a process of continual
improvement of governance and will take steps to address the areas for improvement
identified. The monitoring of their implementation and operation will form part of the next
annual review.

Next Steps

Action Owner

Capability and capacity to counter corruption effectively and | DCC, Ch Supt PSD
fully monitor systems to proactively identify breaches and

misuse

Accessibility and transparency of a number of HR processes AD People Services

Chief of Staff OPCC
& DCC

Co-ordination of engagement activity between the Office of the
Police and Crime Commissioner and Force

Improved understanding of current and future demand to | DCC

support future planning and inform organisational strategy

A more structured and consistent approach to leaming from | DCC

problem solving, mistakes and lessons leamed.

Governance and financial management of collaboration | AD Collaboration

arrangements.

Embedding of the Development Assessment Profile (DAP) | DCC, AD People

within the organisation Services.

Improved understanding of business benefits DCC

Timeliness of auctioning Intemal Audit recommendations AD Collaboration &
OPCC Chief of Staff

Evaluation of commissioned services Chief of Staff OPCC

Purdah for elections of Police and Crime Commissioner ~
relationship management and ensuring faimess and equity.

Chief of Staff (and
Monitoring  Officer),
OPCC
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